
 
 
 

         11 January 2021 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 19 January 2021 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

 
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The meeting can be viewed here: 

https://bit.ly/39gtXWg 

 
TO: Councillor Tina Campbell (Chairman) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Paul Bicknell Councillor Daniel Clarke 
Councillor Jephthe Doguie Councillor Wayne Irish 
Councillor Darshan Mann Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 

 
Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298 

Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk  Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak before 
the meeting. 
 

 Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email: 
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
NATALIE WIGMAN 

Corporate Director – Strategy 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in other formats, including 

Braille, audio, large print and other languages, upon request. 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-in to 
proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the 
Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It is important, however, that 

Councillors can discuss and take decisions without disruption, so the only 
participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers 
advising the Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to 

speak. This meeting may be recorded. 

 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1

https://bit.ly/39gtXWg
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies     
 
2. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
3. Minutes    (Pages 5 - 8)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2020. 
  
4. Public Participation      

 Councillors not on the Local Area Committee and members of the public can 
participate during this section of the meeting in the following ways: 
 

 If you are able to participate live (meet the technical requirements) and wish to 

be present and speak, you will need to notify Democratic Services 4 working 

days (Midday Wednesday 13 January 2021) before the meeting. Technical 

and etiquette guides will be provided. 

 Alternatively, the public can email a statement to be read out by ‘the 

spokesperson’.  Emailed statements will need to be received 2 working days 

(Midday Friday 15 January 2021) before the date of the meeting. Democratic 

Services will confirm receipt of the email and confirm it can be read out. 

 The statement (including questions) will be the equivalent of a maximum 

of three minutes if read out.  Please therefore restrict your statement to one 

side of A4 (12 font).  This applies audio/ video recordings also. 

 Alternatively a MP4 file will be sent to Democratic Services 4 working days 

(Midday Wednesday 13 January 2021) before the meeting.  This must be 

accompanied by a written transcript (emailed). In the event that the file does not 

meet technical requirements the transcript will be read by the spokesperson 

and shown on the screen.  

 Please contact us via democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk 
  
5. Chair's Report     
 
6. Presentation on Planning Guidelines     
 
7. Planning Application - Former Eastleigh Post Office, 14 High Street, Eastleigh, 

SO50 5LA    (Pages 9 - 46)  

 Demolition of former post office and sorting office buildings and erection of 1no. 
four storey building consisting of ground floor flexible commercial space (within use 
classes E(a), E(c), E(e), E(g)(i), Class F1/F2) and 10no. affordable residential 
units, and 1no. six storey building consisting of flexible ground floor commercial 
space (within use classes E(a), E(c), E(e), E(g)(i), Class F1/F2) and 18no. 

2

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk


residential units with creation of associated public realm / open space. 
  
8. Air Quality 6 Monthly Update Report    (To Follow) 
 
9. Financial Management Report    (Pages 47 - 52) 
 
10. Fees and Charges    (Pages 53 - 60) 
 
11. Community Grants    (Pages 61 - 68) 
 
12. Planning Appeals      

 The Head of Legal Services to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
  

9 Westfield Road, Chandlers Ford, SO53 3GT (F/20/87442) 
 
Appeal against the Council's refusal of planning permission for: Erection of 1 
no. detached 2-bedroom dwelling with provision of dropped kerb from 
Westfield Crescent, and addition of single storey side extension to 9 
Westfield Road following demolition of existing attached store. 
 
This was a delegated decision.  

  

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 10 February 2021 at 7:00 pm 

 
 

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news- 
 

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

1. FIELD_TITLE 

2. FIELD_TITLE 
 

3

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 17 November 2020  (7:00 pm – 10:15 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Campbell (Chairman); Councillors Bourne, Bicknell, Clarke, 
Doguie, Irish, Mann and Tyson-Payne 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

136. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 13 October 2020 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

137. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

138. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

Mr Simon Payne addressed the Committee on the clearance of leaves 
from public footpaths and drainage collection points to avoid flooding. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Payne for his question and his positive 
comments about the Street Scene team.  The Chair reassured Mr 
Payne that the leaf clearing operation was well underway and working 
to a schedule which prioritised the areas with the greatest number of 
trees.  However, resources were particularly stretched this year and it 
was difficult to respond to complaints and stick to the schedule.  The 
Chair will look into the areas that Mr Payne had raised as a concern.  
The public were asked to alert the Council to any blocked gullies. 
 
Mr David Mann addressed the Committee with regards to their 
concerns of the process for planning applications, confusing 
communication about speaking live at meetings and being unable to 
contact members of staff. Mr Mann was reassured that the correct 
procedures had been followed, further time to register to speak had 
been allowed at the discretion of the Chair and due to unexpected 
absence, staffing was stretched. A detailed response would be sent to 
Mr Mann addressing his concerns. 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 
139. CHAIR'S REPORT 

 
The Chair thanked Officers for all their efforts to ensure that 
Remembrance Day and Armistice Day were not forgotten.  
 
The new Christmas lights were switched on in the centre of Eastleigh 
without public gathering. The traditional Christmas tree had been replaced 
with a cone of lights.  Alongside this festoon lights had been placed all 
around the colonnades, there were up-lighters for the trees in the Rec, the 
bandstand was lit up and there was a tunnel of lights along the walkway 
from the precinct to The Point. 
 
The Chair announced a brand-new craft market operated by South Central 
Makers - lockdown permitting - on the three Saturdays in December 
leading up to Christmas. There will also be other attractions including 
buskers, food stalls, a brass band a Christmas Elf and the return of the 
Rum Baba circus street performers. The market will stretch from the High 
Street and up into the Market Place to enable social distancing and a 
home delivery service using electric cargo bikes was taking place. 
 
The planning application for the extension of the runway to Southampton 
Airport will be heard at a special daytime meeting of this committee on the 
17 December 2020.  Due to the on-going pandemic this meeting would be 
virtual, however, members of the public would still be able to fully 
participate in the meeting. 
 

140. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
item 6) that contained recommendations for expenditure from the 
Committee’s capital and revenue budget. 
 
RESOLVED – 
 

(1) £212,000 was allocated to the North Stoneham Park play areas 
from developers’ contributions; 

(2) £71,421.11 was allocated for public art at North Stoneham Park 
from developers’ contributions; 

(3) £10,650 was allocated for improvements to the Lakeside 
Country Park extension land from developers’ contributions; 

(4) £7,000 was allocated for the Avenue Park bridge repair from 
the Avenue Park maintenance reserve; 

(5) £18,000 was allocated for repairs to the Freespace Skate Bowl 
from developers’ contributions; 

(6) £5,000 was allocated to the Litter Bin Reserve from developers’ 
contributions; 

(7) £1,200 was allocated for a speed limit reminder sign from 
developers’ contributions; 

6



3 
 

(8) £6,000 was allocated for a town centre festive programme form 
the Revenue Reserve; 

(9) £5,000 was allocated to the NEET support project from the 
Revenue Budget; and 

(10) £5,000 was allocated to Eastleigh Market from the Revenue 
Reserve. 

 
141. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 

 
A short pre-recorded presentation was given on guidelines that had to be 
taken into account when determining planning applications; in particular 
the issues that could, and could not, be taken into account. This was set 
against the broader policy framework. 
 

142. PLANNING APPLICATION - 103 BOURNEMOUTH ROAD, CHANDLER'S 
FORD, EASTLEIGH, SO53 3ZJ 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Development 
Management (Agenda item 8) concerning demolition of existing 
commercial building and construction of a part three-storey and part two-
storey block of flats comprising of 6no. 2 bed units and 2no. 1 bed units, 
with associated parking, landscaping and access from Bournemouth Road 
(amended description). (Ref: F/19/85629). 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Committee note the Officer’s recommendation for approval, 
but permission be REFUSED for the following reasons:  
 

1. The proposed development by virtue of its inappropriate design 
and layout would result in a poor quality living environment for 
its future occupiers due to the insufficient provision of suitable 
private and communal amenity space as well as inadequate 
measures to appropriately address the impacts of noise and 
poor air quality arising from the site’s location. In addition, 
owing to the proximity of facing habitable windows to 
neighbouring boundaries, the development would result in an 
unacceptable level of overlooking and loss of privacy for the 
occupiers of No. 105 Bournemouth Road and No. 331 Leigh 
Road, to the detriment of their amenity. As such the application 
is contrary to Saved Policies 30.ES, 31.ES, 33.ES, 59.BE and 
182.LB of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2001-2011, 
Policies DM1 and DM8 of the Emerging Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan 2016-2036, the guidance contained with the 
Council’s adopted Quality Places Supplementary Planning 
Document, and the provisions of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  
  

2. The proposed development would have an adverse impact 
upon highway safety due to the inappropriate location and 

7



4 
 

configuration of the site access and result in unacceptable 
overspill parking on neighbouring roads due to the lack of on-
site visitor car parking spaces, to the detriment of highway 
safety and amenity. As such the application is contrary to 
Saved Policies 59.BE, 102.T, 104.T and 182.LB of the adopted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2001-2011, Policies DM1, DM13, 
DM14 of the Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-
2036, and Eastleigh Borough Council’s Residential Parking 
Standards Supplementary Planning Document. 
  

3. The proposed development, due to its excessive size and 
scale, its inappropriate design, layout and external facing 
materials, as well as its inadequate landscaping provision, 
would be unsympathetic to its surroundings and appear 
unduly prominent in the street scene, to the detriment of the 
prevailing character of the area. The application is therefore 
contrary to Saved Policies 59.BE and 182.LB of the Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2001-2011, Policy DM1 of the Emerging 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, the guidance 
contained within the adopted Eastleigh Character Area 
Appraisal and Eastleigh Borough Council’s adopted Quality 
Places Supplementary Planning Document and the provisions 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
  

4. The application fails to provide for the required mitigation to 
offset the impacts of the development on the European 
protected Solent Complex (SPA, SAC and Ramsar sites) from 
additional nitrogen loading generated by the population 
increase associated with the new residential properties. The 
application is therefore contrary to the requirements of Saved 
Policy 25.NC of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review 2001-2011, Policies DM10 and DM11 of the Emerging 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, Paragraphs 170, 175 
and 176 of the National Planning Policy Framework, and the 
provisions of The Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations 2017. 

 
 
[Note: (A) One local resident spoke live, one video was played and nine 
statements were received in objection to the application citing concerns 
with regards to the size of the building, safety of the junction, overlooking 
of neighbouring properties, additional noise, pollution, appearance and 
parking. (B) The Agent spoke in support of the application stating that it 
was a contemporary development which was in keeping with neighbouring 
properties and in a viable location.] 
 
 
M6613 
 

8



ELAC – Eastleigh Local Area Committee Tuesday 19 January 2021.  
 
Application 
Number: 

 
F/20/89125 

Case Officer: David Huckfield 
Received Date: 13/11/2020 
Site Address: Former Eastleigh Post Office, 14 High Street, Eastleigh, 

SO50 5LA 
Applicant: Eastleigh Borough Council 
Proposal: Demolition of former post office and sorting office 

buildings and erection of 1no. four storey building 
consisting of ground floor flexible commercial space 
(within use classes E(a), E(c), E(e), E(g)(i), Class F1/F2) 
and 10no. affordable residential units, and 1no. six 
storey building consisting of flexible ground floor 
commercial space (within use classes E(a), E(c), E(e), 
E(g)(i), Class F1/F2) and 18no. residential units with 
creation of associated public realm / open space. 

 
Recommendation:  
 

 

Subject to:  
 

i) The completion of outstanding consultations and the addition 
of any necessary additions or amendments to conditions; 

 
ii) The receipt of amended plans to address the impacts upon the 

privacy of the occupiers of neighbouring properties and the 
addition of any resulting necessary additions or amendments 
to conditions; 

 
iii)    The applicant entering into a legal agreement to secure the 

required affordable housing and planning obligations; and 
 
iv)    The completion of a Habitats Regulations Assessment for the 

development by the Local Planning Authority and the 
undertaking of subsequent consultation with Natural England 
where required. 

 
To Delegate back to the Head of Housing and Development in 
conjunction with the Chair and Vice Chair of Eastleigh Local Area 
Committee to PERMIT  
 

 
 
CONDITIONS AND REASONS: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance 

with the following plans numbered: 20/05/P/001, 20/05/P/005 Rev 0, 
20/05/P/008 Rev 0, 20/05/P/010, 20/05/P/100 Rev 0, 20/05/P/101, 

9

Agenda Item 7



20/05/P/102 Rev 0, 20/05/P/103 Rev 0, 20/05/P/104 Rev 0, 20/05/P/105, 
20/05/P/106 Rev 0, 20/05/P/140 Rev 0, 20/05/P/141 Rev, 20/05/P/142 
Rev 0, 20/05/P/143 Rev 0, 20/05/P/144 Rev 0, 20/05/P/150 Rev 0, 
20/05/P/151 Rev 0, 20/05/P/152 Rev 0, 20/05/P/153 Rev 0, 20/05/P/154 
Rev 0, 20/05/P/155 Rev 0, 20/05/P/156 Rev 0, 20/05/P/201 Rev 0, 
20/05/P/300 Rev 0, 20/05/P/405 Rev 0, 20/05/P/406 Rev 0, 20/05/P/410 
Rev 1, 20/05/P/411 Rev 1, 20/05/P/420 Rev 1, 20/05/P/421 Rev 1, 
20/05/P/422 Rev 1, 20/05/P/423 Rev 1, 20/05/P/425 Rev 0, 20/05/P/426 
Rev 0, 20/05/P/427 Rev 0, 20/05/P/428 Rev 0, 20/05/P/440 Rev 0, 
20/05/P/450 Rev 1.  
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 

 
2. The development hereby permitted shall start no later than three years 

from the date of this decision.  
 
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990.  

 
3. No construction or demolition works shall commence until a Construction 

Environment Management Plan (CEMP), has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Demolition and 
construction shall only take place in accordance with the approved 
details which shall include: 
 
a) a programme and phasing of the demolition, construction and 
development works; 
b) the location and height of temporary site buildings, compounds, 
construction material and plant storage areas used during demolition 
and construction; 
c) safeguards to be used within the construction process to ensure 
surface water contains no pollutants on leaving the site; 
d) safeguards for fuel and chemical storage and use, to ensure no 
pollution of the surface water leaving the site;  
e) the arrangements for the routing / turning of lorries and details for 
construction traffic access to the site; 
f) the arrangements for deliveries associated with all construction works, 
loading / unloading of plant & materials and restoration of any damage to 
the highway [including any vehicle crossovers where applicable]; 
g) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
h) the protection of pedestrian routes during construction; 
i) management measures to control the emission of dust generated by 
demolition and construction works; 
j) a scheme, following assessment, for controlling noise and vibration 
impacts on noise sensitive properties from demolition, site preparation 
and construction activities (to include details of any piling if proposed); 
k) provision for storage, collection, and disposal of waste from the 
development during the demolition and construction period,  

10



l) measures to prevent mud and dust on the highway during demolition 
and construction; and 
m) the erection and maintenance of any security hoardings including any 
decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate.  
 
Reason: To limit the impact the development has on the amenity of the 
locality, neighbouring residents, and biodiversity and hydrology during 
the demolition and construction process. 

 
4. No development above slab level shall start until details and samples of 

the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance in the interest of the 
amenities of the area.  
 

5. Prior to the commencement of any construction, demolition or other 
development works, measures for the protection of any public water 
apparatus (public sewers and any water mains) on or in the proximity of 
the site that could be affected by the development shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the local planning authority, in consultation 
with Southern Water. The development shall then be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason: To ensure the adequate protection of the public 
water/sewerage system. 

 

6. Prior to the commencement of any construction works on the new 
buildings hereby approved, final details of the proposed means of foul 
and surface water sewerage disposal shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development 
shall then be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 
Reason: To secure satisfactory drainage provisions to serve the 
development.  
 

7. No development above slab level shall be carried out until a detailed 
final landscaping scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall cover all hard and 
soft landscaping including trees, planting, boundary treatments, street 
furniture, hard surfacing including measures for the laying out of the 
public realm space, as well as details of ecological enhancement, 
compensation and mitigation measures. Timings for the implementation 
of all measures and landscaping, as well as details of ongoing 
management responsibilities shall also be provided and the works shall 
thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved details and to 
the appropriate British Standard. 
 

11



Reason: In the interests of the amenity and biodiversity.  
 
8. All hard & soft landscaping, tree planting and boundary treatments shall 

be carried out in accordance with the approved details and to the 
appropriate British Standard. For a period of no less than 5 years after 
planting, any trees or plants which are removed, die or become seriously 
damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably 
practicable with others of the same species, size and number as 
originally approved in the landscaping scheme.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to 
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 

9. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the bin 
and cycle storage as shown on the approved plans shall be provided 
and made available for use for the occupiers of the development. 
Thereafter these facilities shall be retained for that use.  

 
Reason: To make satisfactory provision for bin and cycle storage and in 
the interests of the encouraging sustainable travel. 

 
10. Prior to the occupation of any building within each individual phase of the 

development [or, in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority], as built stage SAP data and an as 
built stage water calculator confirming energy efficiency and the 
predicted internal mains water consumption to achieve the following 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: In respect of energy efficiency, a standard of a 19% 
improvement of dwelling emission rate over the target emission rate as 
set in the 2013 Building Regulations; In respect of water consumption, a 
maximum predicted internal mains water consumption of 105 
litres/person/day. The development shall not be carried out otherwise 
than in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: To support a comprehensive approach to high quality design 
across the site; in line with the guidance set out in the Government's 
Ministerial Statement of 25 March 2015 which states that Local Planning 
Authorities should, from the date of its publication, take into account the 
government's intentions in the statement [and not set conditions with 
requirements above a Code level 4 equivalent]. 
 

11. Details of external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to its installation. The development 
shall then accord with the approved details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity, biodiversity and community safety.  

 
12. No vegetation clearance shall occur on site during the bird nesting 

season (between 1st March & 31st August) unless supervised by an 
appropriately qualified ecologist.  

12



 
Reason: To prevent harm to breeding birds.  

 
13. If the existing buildings present on the site are to be demolished during 

the bird nesting season (between 1st March & 31st August), they shall 
be first inspected by a suitably qualified ecologist to ensure that there 
are no birds nesting within them.  
 
Reason: To prevent harm to breeding birds.  
 

14. No construction, demolition or deliveries to the site shall take place 
during the construction period except between the hours of 0800 to 1800 
Mondays to Fridays and 0900 to 1300 on Saturdays and not at all on 
Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby dwellings. 
 

15. No burning of materials obtained by site clearance or any other source 
shall take place during the demolition, construction and fitting out 
process. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties. 

 

16. The commercial units hereby approved shall be used only for purposes 
within Classes E(a), E(c), E(e), E(g)(i), F1, or F2 of the schedule to the 
Town and Country Planning [Use Classes] Order 1987 (as amended), 
[or in any provision equivalent to those Classes in any statutory 
instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification], and for no other purposes whatsoever. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity and protecting the vitality and 
viability of Eastleigh Town Centre. 

 
Note to Applicant: In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework (February 2019), Eastleigh Borough Council takes a 
positive approach to the handling of development proposals so as to achieve, 
whenever possible, a positive outcome and to ensure all proposals are dealt 
with in a timely manner. 
 
Note to Applicant: Southern Water requires a formal application for any new 
connection to the public foul and surface water sewer to be made by the 
applicant or developer. To make an application visit: 
https://developerservices.southernwater.co.uk/ and refer to their New 
Connections Services Charging Arrangements documents which are available 
on their website via the following link: https://southernwater.co.uk/developing-
building/connection-charging-arrangements  
 
Note to Applicant: This development is located within a residents parking 
scheme and it is Council policy that residents of all new developments will not 
be eligible for parking permits. For the avoidance of doubt, the term 

13

https://developerservices.southernwater.co.uk/
https://southernwater.co.uk/developing-building/connection-charging-arrangements
https://southernwater.co.uk/developing-building/connection-charging-arrangements


development means the construction of new or replacement buildings or 
alterations to existing buildings that result in an increased demand for parking 
not catered for within the development. 
 

 
Report 
 
1. This application has been referred to committee in accordance with the 

provisions of the Council’s Constitution as Eastleigh Borough Council 
are the applicant. 

 
Description of application site 
 
2. The application site is comprised of the former Eastleigh Post Office and 

the adjoining Sorting Office buildings which are situated within Eastleigh 
Town Centre. The Post Office building, which is presently vacant, has 
accommodation set across three levels and occupies a prominent 
position along the eastern side of the High Street on to which it fronts, 
with the Sorting Office building being single storey in height and situated 
to the rear, with access via Wells Road. The Sorting Office is currently in 
use as a creative hub providing art and design studios and flexible event 
space for its tenants.  
 

3. Wells Road acts as a service route for the application site as well as the 
other businesses along the High Street and Market Street, in addition to 
a proportion of those fronting on to Leigh Road to the north. This route 
also leads to a modest sized car parking area to the northern side of the 
Sorting Office building which serves the development site. This car park 
is surrounded by chain link fencing and is bound by a cluster of trees to 
its western perimeter. There is a private access route running parallel 
with the southern boundary of the site which links Wells Road with the 
High Street, with this being presently gated at either end.  
 

4. The site lies within the urban edge within the Council’s adopted Local 
Plan (the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011) and forms 
part of the Eastleigh Town Centre Special Policy Area. It also falls within 
a designated shopping zone, with the predominant portion of the site 
(encompassing both of the existing buildings and the area in between) 
being within the ‘secondary shopping zone’ and what is currently the car 
parking area falling within the ‘primary shopping zone’ boundary. 

 
Description of application 
 
5. The application seeks full planning permission for the comprehensive 

redevelopment of the site incorporating the demolition of the existing 
buildings and the provision of two separate mixed-use blocks which 
would be situated at the eastern and western extents of the site 
respectively. The latter, which would have a frontage onto the High 
Street, would be four storeys in height, while the eastern block to the 
rear would be six storeys, with the uppermost storey in both cases being 

14



positioned such that it is recessed from the elevations of the main 
building. Each block has a degree of flexible commercial space at 
ground floor level and encompasses residential development on the 
upper storeys which will provide for a combined total of 28no. flats, 
comprised of 12no. 1-bedroom units and 16no. 2-bedroom units. The 
frontage block which has 10no. units, would be wholly affordable 
housing with this equating to 35% affordable provision.  

 
6. The proposals also incorporate bin and cycle storage to serve the 

commercial and residential uses, the provision of a public realm space in 
the area immediately between the two blocks, as well as the opening-up 
of the link along the southern perimeter of the site to allow for the 
provision of a connecting pedestrian route between High Street and 
Wells Road which would then allow for onward access to Market Street 
further to the east. Vehicular access and site servicing would continue to 
be from Wells Road.  

 

7. The application is accompanied by the following reports and technical 
assessments which have been updated where necessary throughout the 
course of the application: 

 

 Bat Survey Report 

 Daylight and Shading Assessment 

 Design and Access Statement  

 Drainage Strategy 

 External Lighting Strategy 

 Lifetime Homes Plan 

 Lighting Impact Assessment 

 Noise Impact Assessment 

 Structural Strategy 

 Sustainability Statement 

 Topographical Survey 

 Transport Statement 

 Tree Survey 
 
Relevant planning history 
 
8. The site has been subject to a number of small-scale applications over 

the years which relate to minor alterations, extensions or changes to the 
post office and sorting offices buildings, including applications for 
advertisement consents. The most recent and relevant permission for 
the site related to the change of use of the sorting office building to 
artists’ studios with associated external alterations to its exterior. This 
permission was granted in 2012 under planning reference F/12/70801.   
 

9. In terms of recent planning application in the proximity of the site, of 
notable relevance is the consent at No. 4 High Street to the north of the 
application site (Ref. F/18/84679). This granted permission in March 
2019 for the construction of 10no. one-bedroom flats above and behind 

15



the retained ground and first floor commercial premises, to create a four-
storey building fronting on to the High Street. This permission is as yet 
unimplemented but remains extant.  

 
Representations received 
 
10. A total of 70 letters of objection have been received in relation to the 

application as well as 1 letter of comment and 1 letter of support.  
 

11. The following matters were raised as concerns or objections to the 
proposals (summarised):  

 
Scale, design and impact on the character of the area 
 

 Loss of the historic buildings that are present on the site and part of 
the heritage of Eastleigh. 

 Negative impacts on the architectural character of the High Street. 

 The façade of the post office building at least should be retained.  

 The proposed buildings are too high for a low-rise town like 
Eastleigh and are out of keeping with this part of the town centre. 

 The design is industrial in appearance and does not blend in with 
the existing architecture.  

 The proposed materials are out of keeping and the landscaping is 
inadequate. 

 Overdevelopment of the site. 
 
Loss of the Sorting Office 
 

 Loss of the Sorting Office as a creative hub for local artists. 

 The Sorting Office is a valuable part of the community locally and 
throughout the county with this providing art and craft workshops, 
works experience opportunities, engagement in public art projects 
and open studio events.  

 The Council has encouraged and supported the thriving artistic 
community and this relationship should continue if Eastleigh wants 
to be seen as a forward-thinking council which can support and 
embrace the arts.  

 The Sorting Office is important in sustaining a vibrant High Street 
and makes Eastleigh stand apart from other Hampshire towns.  

 The small businesses in the Sorting Office should be supported 
and given shop frontage in the former post office. 

 Suitable alternative space should be found for tenants of the 
sorting office. 

 The site proposed as an alternative is not a long-term prospect and 
even in the short term is not suitable due to having no facilities. 

 The tenants of the Sorting Office had been told that the 
development would involve studio spaces and a gallery/shop. 

 The Sorting Office should be promoted and expanded upon not 
knocked down. 

16



 
Impacts on the town centre, proposed uses and the need for the 
development 
 

 There is no need for any additional retail space in Eastleigh, there 
are currently many units unused.  

 The retail space will be empty for months / years to come given 
how many units are empty in Eastleigh currently. 

 The development is not wanted and additional flats are not needed 
in this part of Eastleigh. 

 The town centre should be re-energised with jobs opportunities not 
homes. 

 More housing will put people off going shopping in the town centre. 

 Eastleigh needs both affordable low-rise accommodation and 
independent shops and small creative businesses.  

 The building should be repurposed for the community or giving 
smaller local businesses a chance for a retail space at a low cost. 

 There are many other dilapidated buildings that could be used. 
 There are enough new builds and not enough doctors, schools etc. 

 The High Street should be maintained with local shops for the 
community. 

 Disruption to the town centre during construction. 
 
Highways related considerations 
 

 Lack of parking provision for the new development for both 
residents and workers within the commercial premises. 

 Residents will not use public transport.  

 Inadequate cycle storage provision.  

 Inappropriate road infrastructure to serve the development. 

 The bin storage is inadequate and waste collection vehicles will 
have issues collecting waste from the bin storage areas.  

 Eastleigh should be investing in vehicle infrastructure and 
improving the bus services.  

 Impact on area used for refuse and recycling for No. 12a High 
Street. 

 
Residential amenity 

 

 Visual intrusion to existing residential properties.  

 Loss of light and loss of privacy to neighbouring properties and 
uses, as well as disturbance from open windows and balconies.  

 Impacts of noise from night-time activity on future residents. 

 Impacts from potential air conditioning units including additional 
noise.  

 Disturbance, vibration, dust and disruption during development 
works, as well as potential obstruction to neighbouring properties 
and businesses.  

 

17



Other 
 

 The space below the planned flats will encourage loitering, drug 
dealing, domestic dramas and somewhere to hide or it will exclude 
the public all together. 

 The proposed housing will not be representative of the community 
and supportive of first-time buyers or those in need of social 
housing. 

 There is no clear description of the type of cladding being used, its 
integrity against combustion nor how this structure will satisfy 
current building regulations under fire safety. 

 As EBC are the applicant, the decision should be made by a 
committee with no connections to EBC. 
 

12. The letter of comment received was from the Sorting Office and this 
highlights the extent to which the studio space is valued by the artists 
that use it and the benefits they consider of having a community of 
artists housed in one building in Eastleigh Town Centre and what this 
can bring to both Eastleigh and the surrounding area. It also emphasised 
the importance of art, culture and creativity to people’s well-being and 
mental health, particularly in these times of uncertainty. The letter went 
on to state that during the initial planning consultation, it was suggested 
that the Sorting Office Studios, with an additional workshop space and 
gallery space would return to the developed site, and that the tenants 
would like to continue supporting the Council’s public art policy and 
recognise the potential to engage in this area to a greater extent. 
 

13. The letter of support received made the following comments: 

 
 This is just what Eastleigh needs, more people living in the town. 

The building is reasonably well fitting for the area and has good 
access to transport options. 

 
Consultation responses  
 
14. Southern Water 
 

There are existing Southern Water assets in the vicinity of the 
development site. The exact position should be determined in 
consultation with Southern Water before the layout is finalised and 
clearance requirements and stand-off distances should be adhered to. A 
condition is requested with regards to sewer protection measures. 
Southern Water can facilitate foul and surface water sewerage disposal 
to service the proposed development and a formal application will be 
required to be made to Southern Water in relation to this. In situations 
where surface water is being considered for discharge to the Southern 
Water network the drainage hierarchy for surface water should be 
followed which is reflected in part H3 of the Building Regulations. A 

18



further condition is requested to require final details of foul and surface 
water drainage to be submitted for approval.  
 
Updated comments are awaited on additional information received from 
the applicant in response to the above comments.  

 
15. Tree Officer – No Objection 
 

Existing Site 
 

The site contains a small group of trees (Norway maple and ash) to the 
north of the site, adjacent to the rear service road. These trees are not 
statutorily protected. The trees are self-seeded and have thus grown in a 
position that is compromised for potential future growth. In addition, the 
trees have a number of significant structural defects on account of the 
nature and location of their growth, as evidenced in the tree survey. 

 
Arboricultural Impact 

 
It does not appear that a definite proposal has been formed with regards 
to the trees: the DAS states that the trees will be “retained if possible” 
and the tree survey does not make recommendations with regards to the 
proposed development. Despite their structural condition, these trees do 
provide some amenity and ecosystem services provision in an area of 
significant hardstanding and structures. There may also be some 
ecological value to the trees. However, whilst it is respected that the 
proposal may try to retain the trees, we are not convinced this is 
appropriate given the structural condition of the trees, their location in 
hardstanding and the lack of potential for future growth. So long as any 
landscape design incorporates new tree planting – to help mitigate for 
the loss of the amenity and ecosystem service provision – we do not 
raise an arboricultural objection to the proposal and the removal of these 
trees if required. 

 
16. Housing Officer – No Objection 
 

This application triggers a 35% affordable housing requirement and 
based on the proposal for a total of 28 dwellings, 35% equates to 10 
dwellings. The Design and Access Statement details the application of 
Vacant Building Credit which when applied reduces the affordable 
requirement to 8 dwellings. This requirement would be secured through 
the S106 agreement. The applicant has advised that it is proposed that 
the whole of the front block of 10 flats would be delivered as affordable 
housing which would deliver an extra 2 flats to be allocated to those on 
the housing register.    

 
We would normally seek for a mix of tenures but given the proposals I 
would suggest that single rented tenure option would be sought as 
Registered Providers seek to avoid the provision of mixed tenure blocks 

19



for ease of management. Additionally, as the balance of the scheme is 
proposed as private market rent this would align with this proposal.  

 
It is good to see a mix of flat sizes proposed between 1 and 2 bedrooms 
and also the ability for some of the 2 bed flats to accommodate up to 4 
people which will provide a range of accommodation and will help create 
a mix of households within the proposed blocks. Our requirement would 
be for all the affordable housing units to be built to Lifetime Homes 
Standards and this is acknowledged in the Design and Access 
Statement. We would recommend that an early dialogue with a 
Registered Provider takes place to ensure that the affordable units meet 
the required standards.  

 
17. Design Review Panel – No Objection 
 

The Panel were generally supportive of such a positive intervention 
within the Town Centre and the contribution it would play in enhancing 
the variety and interest of the urban grain and public realm, particularly 
that of Wells Road to the rear of the site. It is considered that there is 
much scope within Eastleigh Town Centre for higher scale development, 
although this should only be undertaken where appropriate.  

 

The division of the site to provide two separate blocks either side of a 
small public square, linked to High Street and Wells Road by a ‘new’ 
pedestrian link was considered to be the right approach to redeveloping 
the site. The proposed four storey block with setback top floor facing the 
High Street frontage was considered appropriate in its scale and form, 
sitting comfortably with the general scale and form of existing 
development along this side of the street. It was suggested that potential 
for altering or reworking the glazed colonnade along the site frontage be 
investigated as it would be a shame for the colonnade to hide a 
development which would be a positive contribution to the street scene 
and the town centre as a whole.  

 

The introduction of a six-storey block to the rear of the site within a part 
of the town which is predominantly two or three storeys in scale is a bold 
move but one which was generally supported by the Panel. However, 
whilst the height of the block generally works well at the moment due to 
the amount of space around it, thought as to how this could impact upon 
future redevelopment of surrounding sites will need to be taken into 
consideration. 

 
There needs to be an appropriate transition between surfacing and 
boundary treatments to ensure that the quality of the public space is not 
degraded/impinged upon by poorer quality space outside the site. As 
part of this it was suggested that the separate storage building to the 
north of the site becomes part of the site boundary treatment, rather than 
a structure just placed within the space.  

 

20



Views of the development when looking from the north or south of Wells 
Road will be required in order to fully assess the impact of such a large 
structure upon the visual amenity and character of this ‘rear’ area. There 
also needs to be further assessment of the scheme’s visual impact when 
viewed from street level, i.e. at a human scale.  It was also suggested 
that further development of the central public space be undertaken, and 
thought be given as to how this space and the access points/walk-
through areas are lit at this stage to ensure these spaces are attractive 
in the evenings and safe for residents to access their flats.  

 
Overall, the Panel were of the opinion that this would be a positive 
development for the Town Centre, but which could be improved further if 
the above points are successfully addressed. 
 

18. Urban Design Officer – No Objection 
 
No objection to the general layout, form, scale or functions proposed. 
Further design development of the central square and public realm is 
required and further consideration of boundary treatments is required, as 
well as how ancillary servicing spaces will interact with the public realm.  
 

The block fronting onto High Street would be four storeys high with a 
setback 3rd floor, so as to not dominate the street and better respect the 
predominantly two to three storey scale of the street. This is an approach 
which has been approved on a redevelopment scheme a few doors 
along at No.4 High Street, although not yet implemented. The rear block 
is six storeys in height and open on all sides, again with a more 
subservient top floor set in from the edges of the building so as to 
visually reduce its perceived height and scale. The elevational treatment 
also uses tricks to reduce its perceived scale, which work quite 
successfully. 
 
This is a bold and well considered scheme which provides an 
opportunity to enhance a part of the town centre which has substantial 
potential to make better use of the land available, increase the 
population living in the town centre and for a much-improved public 
realm.  

 
Whilst there are still a number of more detailed design aspects to be tied 
down and developed further, which will ensure the scheme achieves its 
potential, I would raise no objection to the proposals at this stage. 
Although I would wish to have the opportunity to comment on more 
developed proposals for the central square and boundary treatments. 

 
19. Hampshire County Council Highways – No Objection 

 
No objection in principle from HCC as Local Highway Authority, subject 
to a condition being applied to require the submission of a construction 
management plan prior to the commencement of development.  
 

21



ACCESS:  
 
Access to the site for pedestrians will remain unchanged by the 
development, and sufficient space is allowed for to the rear of the 
property for refuse collections and service vehicles. This is demonstrated 
via vehicle tracking diagrams included within the associated Transport 
Statement (TS). 

 
PARKING: 

 
No vehicle parking is provided for the development for either the retail or 
residential elements. For the retail, adequate space is provided within 
the surrounding public car park areas and is as such acceptable, and 
given the sites sustainable location within a short walk of both the 
mainline rail station and bus station, along with all the retail and 
employment facilities and good foot and cycle networks, it is also 
considered suitable for what will essentially be a car free development. 
Developers should however make future occupiers fully aware of the no 
car parking provision, as it is EBC policy that no new development within 
the town centre area will be eligible to join the residential parking 
scheme within which the development sits. 
 
In regard to cycle parking, given the lack of vehicle ownership 
opportunities for residents, an uplift in cycle parking would be anticipated 
(above and beyond the EBC Parking Standard of 1 space per unit), and 
this is indeed provided through secure shared cycle sheds. Clarification 
of the total quantum is requested, along with where staff cycle parking 
will also be accommodated, given that this should also be within a 
secure sheltered lockable facility [this has subsequently been clarified].  
 
For customers, the existing provision of on street cycle hoops is 
acceptable when considered with other secure cycle parking 
opportunities within the locality. 
 
TRIP GENERATION: 

  
Given the lack of parking opportunities on site or within the residents 
parking area, it would be anticipated that vehicle trips to and from the 
site would reduce as a result of the development proposals from a 
residential perspective. In terms of the retail options, given the wider 
offer of the Eastleigh town centre area, and associated adjustments 
made for both trips that would be associated with the existing use, along 
with discount measures such as pass-by and linked trips, again no 
additional vehicle trips would be anticipated as a result of the 
development proposals. 

 
20. Hampshire County Council Flood and Water Management 

 
An assessment of flood risk would be expected to be included with any 

22



application even if a full Flood Risk Assessment was not required. This 
has not been provided. There is no assessment of the drainage 
hierarchy which would need to be undertaken prior to agreement to a 
discharge to a sewer. We would also need to see an agreement in 
principle from Southern Water stating the allowable discharge rate. 
 
Although an existing discharge rate is identified, there is no evidence to 
show that this is appropriate or accurate. Further evidence should be 
provided to demonstrate the existing discharge rate. A climate change 
percentage of 30% has been applied. This is not in line with current 
standards and needs to be revised. Some calculations have been 
provided but are not using recognised drainage software. A hydraulic 
model needs to be provided, taking into account the correct climate 
change factor, include the full drainage network and the results provided 
for both the 1:30 and 1:100 + climate change storms. A compliance 
check output (audit wizard or equivalent) should also be included.  
 
The design has raised a few concerns. The Aco drainage proposed is 
not usually able to be lain to a curve and we note that this is adjacent to 
the carriageway so there is a risk of vehicle loadings. The cover is 
currently only specified for pedestrian loadings. The attenuation is used 
with water passing through the permeable pipe and into the storage but 
there appears to be no mechanism to inspect and clean the storage 
units. This type of system is extremely sensitive to siltation but no 
measures appear to have been provided for this. The pipe layout is also 
reliant on water backing up through the system and the calculations are 
not sufficient for us to assess the risk of exceedance.  
 
There appears to be a pipe going beneath the building. This is not best 
practise and should be avoided wherever possible. Surface water is 
shown as being collected primarily by yard gullies. These are extremely 
small and evidence should be provided that these will be sufficient to 
collect the volume of water expected. In addition to the points above, 
water quality needs to be assessed in accordance with the guidance in 
the Ciria SuDS Manual. Exceedance flow plans are required and 
maintenance schedules need to be provided for the each feature in the 
drainage network. 
 
Updated comments are awaited on additional information received from 
the applicant in response to the above comments.  

 
21. Ecology – No Objection 
 

The mitigation and enhancement recommendations in the Bat Survey 
Report are appropriate and should be followed. The enhancement plan 
shows the retention of the original trees and the addition of three trees in 
planters. The latest site layout plan shows two triangular planters with 
seating. These two plans must be amended to agree with each other 
when the landscape design and biodiversity mitigation and enhancement 
are finalised. The planting scheme for these planters has not been 

23



specified, however low level uplighting to trees is shown within these 
planters. Uplighting is not recommended as these trees will be needed 
as foraging habitat for bats and potential nesting sites for birds 
(depending on their size). 

 
The tree report recommends removal of the three trees on site. The 
proposed Landscape Design does not show these trees being retained. 
An enclosed nest box was planned for the northernmost retained tree. If 
these trees are not planned to be retained this proposed mitigation for 
loss of a bird nesting site will also be lost. The lighting of the buildings 
appears to be appropriate for an urban setting but should be coordinated 
with the proposed locations of bird and bat boxes on the most updated 
plan to ensure that light will not shine on these sensitive areas.  
 
The original green roof area was proposed to shelter the bike store in the 
original plan. Now that the bike and bin stores are proposed within the 
ground floor of each building, what is the new purpose of this structure?  
The current surface water drainage from the southern part of the roof is 
combined with the foul water drainage in one outfall pipe and into a foul 
sewer. The northern roof drainage is assumed to have a similar path, 
although it has not been surveyed.  The current surface water proposal 
is to separate the surface and foul drainage, using on site storage in 
below ground voided units, installing yard gullies, below ground pipework 
and discharging into a surface water sewer with a hydrobrake or similar 
to reduce flow volume. The maintenance plan is included at the end of 
the surface water drainage strategy.  
 
I would like to see a more naturalised SuDS plan submitted. This site 
appears appropriate for the use of rain gardens as shown in the CIRIA 
SuDS manual. This would allow surface water to flow into the soil and be 
filtered before discharge into the surface water sewer. It would also 
provide better irrigation for the plants and trees. There are a number of 
SuDS solutions available which combine rain gardens with tree planters 
and underground surface water storage. Seating could be incorporated 
into this area as previously planned without obstructing the flow of 
surface water into the soil. If gullies are required in addition, they should 
be the type that contain an element of filtration. 

 
22. Direct Services 
 

No objection.  
 
23. Other Consultations 

 
Comments are currently awaited from Southampton Airport, Economic 
Development, Environmental Health, the NHS CCG, as well as 
Hampshire County Council Children’s Services (Education).  

 
Policy context: designation applicable to site 
 

24



 Within the Urban Edge 

 Within Designated Special Policy Area (Eastleigh Town Centre) 

 Within Designated Shopping Zone 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
24. At a national level, the National Planning Policy Framework (the ‘NPPF’ 

or the ‘Framework’) is a material consideration of significant weight in the 
determination of planning applications. The NPPF states that (as 
required by statute) applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise and sets out a general presumption in 
favour of sustainable development.  
 

25. The three identified dimensions of sustainability should to be sought 
jointly: economic (supporting economy and ensuring land availability); 
social (providing housing, creating a high quality environment with 
accessible local services); and environmental (contributing to, protecting 
and enhancing the natural, built and historic environment) whilst local 
circumstances should also be taken into account so that development 
appropriately responds to the different opportunities for achieving 
sustainable development in different areas.  

 
Planning Practice Guidance  
 
26. Where material, the Planning Practice Guidance which supports the 

provisions and policies of the NPPF should be afforded weight in the 
consideration and determination of planning applications. 

 
Saved Policies of the Adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 
(EBLP 2001-2011)  
 
27. The key saved policies of the adopted local plan relating to this 

application are: 
 

 25.NC and 26.NC (biodiversity), 28.ES (waste collection and recycling), 
30.ES (noise-sensitive development), 31.ES (residential development 
and noise), 33.ES (air quality), 34.ES (energy and climate change), 
35.ES (contaminated land), 45.ES (drainage), 59.BE (promoting good 
design), 72.H (housing densities), 73.H (creating mixed communities), 
74.H (affordable housing), 100.T, 101.T and 102.T (transport and new 
development), 104.T (parking), 125.TC and 126.TC (Eastleigh Town 
Centre general principles), 127.TC (Eastleigh Town Centre shopping 
area), 137.TC (Primary shopping zone), 138.TC (Secondary shopping 
zone), 141. TC (Upper floors), 147.OS (public open space), 165.TA 
(public art contributions), 185.IN (community facilities), 190.IN 
(infrastructure and utilities), 191.IN (developer contributions).  

 
The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 
 

25



28. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 was submitted for 
examination in July 2014 but the Inspector concluded that insufficient 
housing was being provided for in the Plan and that it was unsound.  
While this has not been withdrawn and remains a material consideration, 
it can therefore be considered to have extremely limited weight in the 
determination of this application. 

 
The Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 
 
29. The Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036 was submitted by the 

Council to the Planning Inspectorate on 31st October 2018 with hearings 
having commenced in November 2019 and concluded in early 2020. The 
Council has now received the Inspector’s feedback and recommended 
actions on the plan. On 25 June 2020, the Council resolved to progress 
the examination on the basis of the main modifications outlined in the 
Inspector’s letter and action points and / or any other main modifications 
that may be necessary in response to and acknowledging the Inspector’s 
letter regarding the policy concerning Mercury Marina (HA2), with a view 
to working with the Inspector through the examination process to seek a 
plan which can be found ‘sound’ and adopted by the Council during the 
course of 2021. Given its status therefore and the Council’s decision to 
proceed with this, it is considered that considerable weight can be given 
to the Plan and the policies contained within it 
 

30. Within the Submitted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, the site 
continues to fall within the urban edge and within a designated shopping 
zone. The following policies of the Submitted Plan are of relevance to 
the development proposals: S1 (Delivering Sustainable Development), 
S2 (Approach to New Development), S3 (Location of New Housing), 
DM1 (General Criteria for New Development), DM2 (Environmentally 
Sustainable Development), DM3 (Adaption to Climate Change), DM6 
(Sustainable Surface Water Management and Watercourse 
Management), DM8 (Pollution), DM11 (Nature Conservation), DM13 
(General Development Criteria – Transport), DM14 (Parking), DM21 
(New Retail Development), DM22 (Changes of Use in Retail Frontages 
in District Centres), DM23 (Residential Development in Urban Areas), 
DM26 (Creating a Mix of Housing), DM30 (Delivering Affordable 
Housing), DM31 (Dwellings with Higher Access Standards), DM32 
(Internal Space Standards for New Residential Development), DM40 
(Funding Infrastructure), E3 (Eastleigh Town Centre). 

 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Places (2011) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Parking Standards 
(2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Biodiversity (2009) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations (2008) 

 Supplementary Planning Document: Environmentally Sustainable 
Development (2009) (Updated 2015) 

26



 Eastleigh Town Centre Vision (Discussion Document – 5th Revision 
– November 2014) 

 Eastleigh Borough Council Public Art Strategy (2015-2019) 
 
Assessment of proposal  
 
31. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and Section 

38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 require a local 
planning authority determining an application to do so in accordance with 
the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. 

 
32. As indicated above the Development Plan comprises of the Saved 

Policies of the Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2001-2011 and the 
application must be assessed against those that are of relevance to the 
proposed development.  

 
The principle of development  
 
33. The site lies within the urban edge where the basic principle of 

development is considered to be acceptable. It also falls within the 
Eastleigh Town Centre Special Policy Area within the Council’s adopted 
Local Plan where Saved Policies 125.TC and 126.TC apply to 
development proposals. Saved Policy 125.TC, amongst other things, 
requires that development within the town centre creates a high quality 
of built and urban design, that is maximises development density by 
providing the maximum number of storeys appropriate in design terms to 
the site and its surroundings, shows that all storeys are designed for 
active use such as housing or offices, and has uses on the ground floor 
which attract customers, encompassing a range of town centre uses. 
Additionally, Saved Policy 126.TC requires that measures are included 
to accommodate any additional trips generated by the development; first 
through encouraging sustainable modes of travel and secondly, where 
feasible and necessary, by providing further short stay car parking.  

 
34. The general principle of a mixed use development incorporating 

commercial uses at ground floor level and residential redevelopment on 
the upper storeys of the proposed buildings is therefore considered to be 
acceptable subject to the proposals adhering to the criteria of these 
policies, as well as the other relevant local and national planning policies 
and associated supplementary planning guidance. The matters of 
material relevance to the proposals in these regards are considered in 
the sections below.  

 
Impacts on the vitality and viability of Eastleigh Town Centre 
 
35. In terms of the proposed mix of uses, the proposals include the provision 

of a range of flexible commercial space at the ground floor level of the 
buildings, as well as residential apartments on the upper storeys in each 
case. The site lies within a designated shopping zone, the majority of 
which, including the High Street frontage, falls within the secondary 

27



shopping zone within the Council’s adopted Local Plan where Saved 
Policy 138.TC allows for redevelopment to uses within the ‘A’ planning 
classes (A1 retail, A2 financial and professional services, A3 restaurant / 
café, A4 drinking establishments, A5 hot food takeaways), as well as 
leisure or cultural uses. Saved Policy 127.TC additionally requires that 
uses within the shopping zone that are provided at ground floor level 
should be such as to be able to accommodate a lot of customers and 
present a continuous ground floor visible frontage to the street, with this 
also being a requirement of Saved Policy 125.TC as set out above.  
 

36. With regards to the commercial uses first of all, the use classes order 
has recently been updated with the ‘A’ use class having been revoked 
and replaced with uses within the new class ‘E’ (this includes former A1, 
A2 and A3 uses amongst others) and A4 and A5 uses now becoming sui 
generis. The application seeks approval for a range of uses for the 
ground floor commercial units, which would allow for a degree of 
flexibility to enable them to appeal to as wide a range of potential tenants 
as possible. These uses include retail (E(a)), financial and professional 
services (E(c)), medical or health facilities (E(e)), offices (E(g)(i)), 
learning and non-residential institutions (F(1)) and local community uses 
(F2) including halls or meeting places for the principal use of the local 
community.  
 

37. As noted above, Saved Policy 138.TC generally allows for flexibility for a 
range of uses within the secondary shopping zone with this including 
provision for cultural and leisure uses, in addition to other town centre 
uses such as retail and financial and professional services. Whilst some 
of the uses proposed may generate more footfall than others, the ground 
floor spaces have been designed with large windows to all public sides 
as to present an appropriate active frontage which suitably addresses 
the adjoining streets and spaces. It is also of material relevance that the 
Post Office building itself has been vacant for some time and presently 
therefore contributes little by way of vitality and viability to the centre of 
Eastleigh. Allowing for a range of uses therefore which could occupy the 
commercial space maximises the potential for these parts of the 
development to be fully occupied and make a greater contribution to the 
town centre in these regards.  

 
38. In terms of the introduction of residential uses to the site, paragraph 85 

of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should recognise 
that residential development often plays an important role in ensuring the 
vitality of centres and encourages residential development on 
appropriate sites. The provision of new housing in the town centre in 
combination with other uses is also encouraged within the Eastleigh 
Town Centre Vision document to support the provision of providing 
housing within sustainable communities and reinforce a sense of 
community in the town centre, with Saved Policy 141.TC of the adopted 
Local Plan stating that the use of upper floors of premises in shopping 
areas, including for residential purposes, will be permitted subject to the 
amenity of the upper floor uses not being adversely affected by the 

28



ground floor use and adequate provision being made for the disposal, 
storage and collection of waste. The provision of residential uses on the 
upper floors of the development is therefore supported in policy terms at 
both local and national level with this assisting in achieving a 
concentration of people in the town centre and thereby enhancing 
vitality, as well as allowing more people to live in locations that are 
accessible to facilities by public and other sustainable modes of 
transport such as cycling and walking. 
 

39. As set out within Saved Policy 141.TC it is important however that the 
commercial uses proposed do not conflict with the upper floor residential 
uses in terms of unduly impacting upon the amenity of their occupiers. 
Such impacts, depending on the types of commercial use, could 
potentially be in a range of manners which may include through odours 
as well as through noise and disturbance generated either by the 
activities carried out within a premises (including through the playing of 
music) and/or hours of operation (for example through late night uses 
which may generate external activity associated with customers coming 
and going)) and/or deliveries which could result in disturbance at 
unsociable hours.  

 
40. The uses applied for are however considered to be relatively low impact 

in these respects. No odour generating uses are proposed (for example 
restaurants or hot food takeaways) and the range of uses for which 
permission has been sought are generally considered to be compatible 
with residential properties. Certain uses may however still seek to play 
audible music or have longer opening hours (for example retail stores or 
community centre uses) or undertake deliveries during the early morning 
or at night and as such it is considered that it would be reasonable to 
impose a restriction on hours that deliveries can take place as well as on 
hours of use, with the latter also having regard to the fact that the site 
lies within a town centre location where some level of evening activity 
may reasonably be expected. The submitted noise assessment 
additionally recommends enhanced sound insultation be installed 
between the ground floor commercial units and upper floor dwellings, as 
well as MVHR to limit the risk of disturbance to occur to residents. At this 
stage comments are awaited from the Council’s Environmental Health 
team on each of the above matters and members will be updated further 
on this at the committee meeting. Appropriate conditions will 
subsequently be imposed accordingly taking account of the comments of 
the Environmental Health Officer.  

 
41. With regards to the existing uses on site, the post office building is 

presently vacant as noted above, with the former sorting office providing 
for art and design studios and flexible event space for its tenants. A 
number of the third-party representations received in relation to the 
application have raised the matter of the loss of the sorting office and it 
is acknowledged that this appears to have been a well utilised facility 
that has been very much appreciated by those that have used it. The 
building is not however subject to any statutory protection and as such 

29



the application could not be reasonably refused as a result of its loss 
and, indeed, the retention of this building in its current form as has been 
suggested within some of the representations received, would also 
compromise the potential of this town centre site to be redeveloped in a 
more efficient manner than is presently the case. 

 

42. In terms of the use of the Sorting Office, it is understood that the Council 
in its capacity as landowner and landlord for the building have been in 
dialogue with the tenants with a view to assisting in the relocation of the 
facility to alternative premises owned by the Council which have been 
identified elsewhere within the centre of Eastleigh, with engagement 
being undertaken as to how these may be further adapted if required to 
meet the tenants needs. Additionally, the flexible commercial space 
which is proposed as part of the application could, under the provisions 
of use class F1, allow for the use of this space for similar purposes, 
albeit the realisation of any such arrangement to this effect would be a 
separate matter between landlord and tenant and is not a material 
planning consideration.  

 
Layout and design 
 
43. Saved Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local Plan requires that development 

takes full and proper account of the context of the site including the 
character and appearance of the locality and that it is appropriate in a 
number of regards including its massing, scale, layout, design, siting and 
density, whilst Saved Policy 125.TC, amongst other things, requires that 
development within the town centre creates a high quality of built and 
urban design, that is maximises development density by providing the 
maximum number of storeys appropriate in design terms to the site and 
its surroundings.  

 
44. These local plan requirements are reflected within national planning 

policy, with Paragraph 122 of the NPPF requiring that planning decisions 
encourage the efficient use of land whilst at the same time respecting 
the character of the area, promoting regeneration and change, and 
securing well-designed, attractive and healthy places. Paragraph 127 
goes on to state that planning decisions should ensure that 
developments: will function well and add to the overall quality of the 
area; are visually attractive as a result of good architecture; and, are 
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built 
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging 
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities). 
 

45. The existing site incorporates the former Eastleigh Post Office and 
associated Sorting Office buildings which vary between 2.5/3 storeys 
and single storey in height. These buildings, whilst occupying a 
significant portion of the site in terms of their footprint, are relatively low 
scale and density and it can be argued therefore that in combination they 
represent a somewhat inefficient use of land on what is one of the more 
sizeable town centre sites within central Eastleigh. Whilst the buildings 

30



themselves do undoubtedly have some degree of architectural merit, 
they are not subject to any statutory protection as noted above and, as 
set out within the submitted Design and Access Statement, are 
somewhat convoluted in terms of their existing layout. They are not 
therefore particularly easily adaptable or accessible. It is therefore 
considered that the site presents an opportunity to provide a high-quality 
development of a more significant scale which both improves the 
appearance of the land itself and brings it back into active use, as well 
as being something that could potentially act as a driver for further 
regeneration in this part of Eastleigh Town Centre.  

 
46. The application proposes a comprehensive redevelopment scheme 

encompassing the demolition of the existing buildings and the erection of 
two separate blocks, one of four storeys in height addressing the High 
Street frontage and one of six storeys at the rear (east) of the site, with 
the land in between providing a mixture of flexible external space for the 
proposed commercial uses as well as public realm space. A pedestrian 
through-route is also proposed along the southern boundary of the site 
which would link Wells Road with the High Street and would thereby 
allow access to both blocks from these roads.  

 

47. In terms of the scale, form and design of the development, the proposed 
frontage block would be more substantial than the structure that it would 
replace. It has however been designed in a such manner that the third 
floor is recessed from the buildings elevations as to visually reduce its 
perceived height and massing and appropriately respect the 
predominantly two to three storey scale of this part of the street. It is not 
therefore considered that it would appear unduly large or dominating 
upon the street scene or detract from the character of the High Street 
and, whilst not yet built, it is noted that a similar approach to 
redevelopment has been approved slightly further to the north at Number 
4 High Street.  

 

48. The rear block would be larger at six storeys in height and open to all 
sides, with this again having a recessed upper storey to reduce its 
perceived height and scale, with the proposed elevational treatments 
which incorporate split level and less regular fenestration further 
assisting in this regard. Whilst the building would be taller than that 
proposed to the front and also the existing surrounding neighbouring 
buildings, it is considered that in this particular case the site has the 
capacity to accommodate this scale of development given its overall size 
and the space that exists around it. Nonetheless it is acknowledged that 
a building of this scale and in this location will begin to alter the character 
of this part of the centre of Eastleigh, particularly with it being positioned 
in what has historically been a subservient part of the town which has 
principally been used for servicing. This approach has however been 
supported by both the Council’s Urban Design Officer as well as the 
Eastleigh and Winchester Design Review Panel and, as demonstrated 
within the visuals presented in the Design and Access Statement, it is 
not considered that it would detract from the character of the area but 

31



rather act as a positive driver to encourage further redevelopment and 
regeneration within this part of the town.  
 

49. With regards to their appearance, the elevational treatment of each block 
is slightly different with the block fronting the High Street having more 
formality and hierarchy to the scale and fenestration of each floor, 
whereas the rear block is slightly less formal with more asymmetrical 
fenestration which, as noted above, is utilised in part to assist in visually 
reducing its perceived scale. Each block is however pulled together 
through the materials used and matching architectural features, such as 
the perforated metal cladding panels which reflect the franking marks 
used on letters and present a subtle nod to the history of the site. A 
material pallet has been proposed which incorporates red brick for the 
frontage block, two types of buff brick for the rear block, simple stone 
detailing for sills and coping, and ‘bronze’ coloured metal cladding for the 
subservient top floors and elevational cladding of both buildings. These 
are simple robust materials that should assist in giving a high-quality 
appearance to the development whilst also providing visual interest.  
 

50. With regards to the space in between the buildings, the application sets 
out that this is proposed to encompass a mixture of uses, with the space 
directly to the east/west of the proposed ground floor commercial units to 
be given over as flexible external space for the use of tenants under 
licence, for example, for external seating, whilst at the same time having 
the potential to be retained for wider ranging public events. Pedestrian 
‘desire lines’ have then been plotted on the plan showing the primary 
circulation routes which sets a route at 45 degrees through the central 
area of public realm which will be given over to planting and mid-scale 
trees, with these two areas seeking to provide a mixture of sunny, 
dappled shade and shaded spots for the public and customers of the 
commercial uses to sit out and take advantage of the outdoor 
environment. The area to the north of the site is proposed as a mixed-
use surface and will allow for vehicular deliveries, refuse collection and 
residential drop off in a secure off-street location, without impacting on 
the Public Realm area immediately between the two proposed blocks.  
 

51. The Council’s Urban Designer and the Design Review Panel, whilst 
supporting the general principles proposed, have suggested some 
further development of the layout and landscaping of the external space 
may be necessary for it to realise its full potential and it is recognised 
that its success will also to some degree depend on the exact nature of 
the commercial end occupiers and if and how they make effective use of 
some of this area. There may also be some changes required to the 
landscaping as a result of the drainage and ecological considerations 
associated with the application as set out within the relevant consultation 
responses on these matters. It is considered however that the hard and 
soft landscaping, as well as the final lighting scheme and any street 
furniture provisions, could be appropriately covered by a condition 
requiring these details to be submitted for approval and, overall, it is 
considered that the area will serve to provide a flexible external space 

32



which is not unduly dominated by the new buildings and has suitable 
potential to enhance the public use and the visual appearance of this 
part of the town centre. The space is also well overlooked by the new 
commercial and residential uses which will serve to assist in 
discouraging anti-social behaviour from taking place within it.  

 
52. Taking account of all of the above factors and the site context, overall it 

is considered that the development is acceptable in terms of use, layout, 
design and impact on the character of the area and that it achieves the 
balance advocated within national planning policy of making efficient use 
of land and achieving appropriate densities, whilst at the same time 
respecting the character of the area, promoting regeneration and change 
within the Town Centre, and securing well-designed, attractive places. 
The development is therefore considered to comply with Saved Policies 
59.BE and 125.TC of the adopted Local Plan and paragraphs 122 and 
127 of the NPPF in these respects.  

 
Residential amenity  
 
53. Saved Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local requires that development 

avoids unduly interfering, disturbing or conflicting with adjoining or 
nearby uses, including by way of overlooking and loss of light or outlook, 
whilst Paragraph 127 of the NPPF, amongst other things, requires that 
planning decisions ensure that development provides a high standard of 
amenity for existing and future users. The Council’s adopted Quality 
Places SPD provides additional guidance in relation to amenity in 
support of Saved Policy 59.BE and there are two primary considerations 
in this respect in this case, these being the impact of the development on 
that of the occupiers of existing neighbouring properties and the 
appropriateness of the level of amenity that would be afforded for the 
future occupiers of the proposed dwellings. 

 
54. In terms of the latter first of all, the Council’s Quality Places SPD 

requires that new homes have sufficient internal space for residents to 
use comfortably and to support a practical quality of home life for the 
intended number of residents. In this respect, the government has 
published nationally described space standards which will be 
incorporated into the Council’s planning policy when the Submitted Local 
Plan is adopted. The proposed units would meet these standards and 
thereby would have a sufficient level of internal floor space to allow 
residents to live comfortably. The internal spaces are also generally well 
laid out and provide for good potential for reasonable levels of outlook to 
be available from and light to be received to habitable spaces, with the 
latter being demonstrated by the submitted daylighting assessment for 
the development.  

 
55. The one exception to this is the second bedrooms within a small number 

of the upper floor flats in the frontage block which have their only 
windows positioned on the northern elevation of the building and in close 
proximity to the neighbouring property to this side. This affects the 

33



windows of three bedrooms in total, with these being at first floor and 
second floor levels. This is not an ideal arrangement as it would both 
compromise light and outlook for these rooms to some degree. Whilst on 
balance this is not considered entirely unacceptable in itself, there is also 
a resulting conflict between these windows and the facing roof lights 
within the southern roof slope of the neighbouring property at Number 
12a High Street, with this creating the potential for an adverse loss of 
privacy for its occupiers. Amendments have therefore been requested 
within this part of the development to address this issue and these may 
require some minor internal reconfiguration of the front block to ensure 
that the development does not impact unduly upon the privacy of the 
neighbouring residents.  
 

56. With regards to the matter of the privacy for the future occupiers, the 
Quality Places SPD states that where apartments are looking onto other 
apartments, separated exclusively by public or communal space, these 
should be a minimum distance apart between windows of habitable 
rooms to ensure satisfactory standards of privacy and day light and 
prevent unacceptable levels of overshadowing. The minimum distance 
within this guidance is 20m where both buildings are new build. The two 
new blocks achieve a minimum figure of 16.2m, which is below this 
standard. It is necessary in all cases however to have regard to the 
context in which a development is taking place when applying these 
amenity standards. In this instance, the site is situated within a town 
centre environment where there is perhaps a reasonable expectation for 
residents that buildings may be sited closer together than would be the 
case elsewhere, for example on a greenfield site. It is also important to 
ensure that efficient use of land is being made and development 
densities are maximised in the town centre in accordance with the 
provisions of the special policy area designation. On balance, therefore 
and taking account of these factors, the separation distance is not 
considered to be unacceptable in this instance.  

 
57. For exterior space, there is a general requirement within the Quality 

Places SPD for flats to have a communal amenity area which is a size 
equivalent to 25sqm per unit, with the provision of balconies also being 
encouraged where appropriate to provide a degree of unit-specific 
outdoor sitting space. Where a flatted development is adjacent to or in 
particularly close proximity to a useable recreation space or within an 
area of very good local facilities, such as a town centre, this requirement 
for communal space can however be waived. Whilst one option for the 
central square could have been to provide direct external amenity space 
for the new residents, given the proximity of Eastleigh Recreation 
Ground to the site and the range of facilities available in Eastleigh Town 
Centre, this is not considered to be a requirement in planning terms that 
would be insisted upon in this case and indeed the use of this area as a 
public space would be considered more appropriate in this location. A 
number of the units also have balconies or roof terraces, including those 
on the top storey of the frontage block, as well as all 18no. apartments in 

34



the rear block which are integrated into the design of the buildings, in 
order to provide unit specific outdoor sitting space for residents.  

 
58. With regards to the impact on neighbouring occupiers, whilst a number 

of the buildings which surround the site are in commercial use, there are 
existing residential properties to the south which, in closest proximity, 
includes No. 16a High Street and Grayton House, as well as to the north 
with this including No. 39 Wells Road and 12a High Street. Grayton 
House lies perpendicular to the rearmost of the proposed blocks and 
appears to contain only a bathroom window and upper floor external 
access door within its facing elevation which limits the potential for the 
development to compromise the privacy of the occupiers of this 
neighbouring building. The siting of the proposed development to the 
north of Grayton House will also negate any possibility for unacceptable 
overshadowing or loss of light to occur. In terms of No. 16a High Street, 
this unit does have facing fenestration to its northern side. This will 
however be set opposite the stairwell and lift area for the frontage block, 
as opposed to being directly opposite any habitable rooms and, on 
balance therefore the resulting arrangement is not considered to be 
unacceptable.  

 
59. In terms of No. 39 Wells Road and 12a High Street as well as the 

residential units/flats further to the north (including to the rear of 8 High 
Street), these buildings do have habitable windows facing towards the 
western elevation of the proposed rearmost block. The general standard 
where apartments are facing onto apartments as in this case, is for a 
22m separation distance (20m where both buildings are new build as 
noted above). A separation distance of approximately 20 metres is 
afforded to the closest of these buildings which again when taking 
account of the town centre context, is not considered unacceptable. As 
noted above, No. 12a also has facing rooflights within its southern roof 
slope which serve a bathroom and bedroom, with the latter also being 
served by a window within its eastern elevation. Taking account of these 
factors, including the secondary nature of these rooms, it is not 
considered that any resulting impacts in terms of loss of outlook or light 
would unacceptable in planning terms and, indeed, the submitted 
daylight assessment and accompanying shadow diagrams demonstrate 
that reasonable levels of sunlight and daylight will be maintained for the 
neighbouring properties relative to the existing situation. The matter of 
the privacy impacts upon No. 12a High Street do however need to be 
addressed through amendments to the plans as set out above.  
 

60. Taking account of the above factors and subject to these amendments, 
the application is considered to comply with the requirements of Saved 
Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local Plan and Paragraphs 127 of the 
NPPF in respect of the matter of residential amenity.  

 
Transport and highway matters 
 

35



61. Saved Policy 100.T of the adopted Local Plan requires that development 
is or could be well served by public transport, cycling and walking and it 
includes measures which minimise its impact on the existing highway 
network. Saved Policy 59.BE (v.) requires that development has a 
satisfactory means of access and layout for vehicles, cyclists and 
pedestrians including appropriate links to surrounding footpaths 
cycleways and public transport services, whilst Saved Policy 104.T 
requires that an appropriate level of car parking be provided in 
accordance with the Council’s adopted standards. These policy 
provisions are considered to be consistent with the requirements of the 
NPPF and in particular those of paragraphs 108 and 109.  

 

62. The application is supported by a Transport Statement which appraises 
the key transport matters associated with the development, including the 
site’s accessibility, the development layout and cycle parking 
arrangements, access and servicing arrangements, and the impacts of 
the proposals on the local road network. This assessment has been 
reviewed by the Highway Authority and supplemental information has 
subsequently been received in response to their comments during the 
application process.  

 

63. In terms of parking, the requirements for residential uses are set out 
within the Council’s adopted Residential Parking Standards SPD. 
Generally, for housing developments within the Borough, on-site car 
parking is required to be provided. The SPD however recognises 
Eastleigh Town Centre and the surrounding area as the most accessible 
location in the Borough with regard to local facilities and public transport 
services with regular trains and buses in particular providing 
comprehensive and frequent services to surrounding villages, towns and 
cities, including both Winchester and Southampton. The town is also well 
served by public off-street parking, with the surrounding roads also being 
within a controlled parking zone which restricts the potential for overspill 
parking from new development into nearby residential streets. The SPD 
therefore sets out that a reduction in the usual standards can be 
accommodated within the town centre and indeed allowing flexibility in 
this respect gives the potential for imaginative proposals to come 
forward as part of town centre redevelopment and regeneration 
schemes. In this case and given the particularly central location of the 
site, it is considered that a car free development would be acceptable, 
and no objection has been raised in this respect by the Highway 
Authority.  

 
64. Where car free developments are proposed, however, it is important that 

sufficient provision is made to allow for residents to maximise 
sustainable transport options and notably, in this case, through sufficient 
and secure cycle parking. In this regard, integral shared secure bike 
storage is provided for the residential occupiers within the two proposed 
blocks, with cycle parking for the commercial uses available in a 
separate building in the northern part of the site. The level of provision 
represents a notable uplift on the Council’s adopted standards with 

36



residential storage for 60 cycles, and 10 spaces for the commercial 
uses. This numbers have been clarified by the applicant in response to 
the query raised in this regard by the Highway Authority, with storage to 
be stacked to maximise capacity for cycles. For customers of the 
commercial premises, the existing provision of street cycle hoops within 
the town centre is deemed to be acceptable when considered with other 
secure cycle parking opportunities within the locality as has been 
confirmed by the Highway Authority.  
 

65. With regards to the impacts on the local highway network, as noted by 
the Highway Authority, given the lack of parking opportunities on site or 
within the surrounding residents parking areas, it would be anticipated 
that vehicle trips to and from the site would reduce as a result of the 
development proposals from a residential perspective. In terms of the 
retail options, given the wider offer of the Eastleigh town centre area, 
and associated adjustments made for trips that would be associated with 
the existing use, along with discount measures such as pass-by and 
linked trips, again no additional vehicle trips would be anticipated as a 
result of the development proposals. 
 

66. In terms of access and servicing, pedestrian access is acceptable from a 
highways perspective and sufficient space has been allowed to the rear 
for refuse collections and other service vehicles via Wells Road. This 
has been demonstrated through the provision of vehicle tracking 
diagrams which are contained within the Transport Statement which 
accompanies the application. The level of bin storage is also acceptable 
and accords with the relevant standards, with no objections being raised 
by the Council’s Direct Services Team.  

 
67. Overall, the proposals are considered to be acceptable in terms of their 

accessibility and highway related impacts and comply with Saved 
Policies 59.BE, 100.T, and 104.T in these regards.  

 
Contaminated land 

 
68. Saved Policy 35.ES of the adopted Local Plan requires that it be 

demonstrated that land that is known or suspected to be contaminated 
will be remediated to a suitable standard for the proposed end use. 
Paragraphs 170 and 178 of the NPPF stipulate that planning decisions 
should contribute to and enhance the natural environment through 
remediating and mitigating contaminated land and that decisions should 
ensure that sites are suitable for their new use, taking account of ground 
conditions and former activities. Paragraph 179 goes on to state that 
where a site is affected by contamination or land stability issues, 
responsibility for securing a safe development rests with the developer 
and/or landowner. 

 
69. The site has historically been used for commercial purposes, primarily as 

a post office and associated sorting office, and lies adjacent to other 
commercial premises. Taking account of these former, historic and 

37



adjacent uses, as well as the sensitive nature proposed end use 
(residential), the development may have the potential to be affected by 
contaminants in the ground. Whilst any such risks would not be 
considered to be prohibitive to redevelopment, further investigation may 
be necessitated, and remediation required where deemed to be 
necessary. Comments are however awaited on this matter from the 
Council’s Environmental Health Officer but it is envisaged that, if 
deemed to be required, this matter could be covered by appropriate 
planning conditions which then be imposed on the planning consent 
should permission be granted.  

 
Trees  
 
70. Saved Policy 59.BE of the adopted Local Plan 2001-2011 requires that 

development takes full and proper account of the context of the site and 
is appropriate in relation to natural features and trees worthy of retention. 
Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction – 
Recommendations (BS 5837:2012) advises that a realistic assessment 
of the probable impact of any proposed development on trees should 
take into account the characteristics and condition of the trees 
concerned, with due allowance and space for their future growth and 
maintenance requirements. To maximise the probability of successful 
tree retention account should be taken during the design process of any 
shading of buildings and open space, any direct damage both below and 
above ground, future pressure to remove trees, and seasonal nuisance. 
 

71. The application is supported a Tree Survey which appraises and 
categorises the arboricultural features on or adjacent to the site. The site 
contains a small group of trees (Norway maple and ash) in its northern 
section, adjacent to the rear service road. These trees are not statutorily 
protected and are self-seeded specimens that have grown in a position 
that is compromised for potential future growth. In addition, the trees 
have a number of significant structural defects on account of the nature 
and location of their growth, as evidenced in the tree survey. Whilst it is 
acknowledged that they do provide some amenity and potentially 
ecological value in a location that is largely otherwise dominated by 
hardstanding, the Council’s Tree Officer has raised no objection to their 
removal given their structural condition and lack of potential for future 
growth. The applicant has confirmed that they are intended to be 
removed with additional replacement planting proposed in the central 
square area to mitigate for the loss of the amenity and ecosystem 
service and on this basis and in light of the comments of the Council’s 
Tree Officer, this is considered to be acceptable in this case.  

 
Ecology and drainage  
 
72. Saved Policy 45.ES of the adopted Local Plan requires that development 

provides for adequate drainage infrastructure, whilst Saved Policy 25.NC 
states that development which will adversely affect a habitat or feature of 
importance for wild fauna and flora will not be permitted, unless it can be 

38



demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Council that: (i) the benefits of the 
development outweigh the adverse impacts (ii) the adverse impacts are 
unavoidable, and (iii) appropriate measures are taken which would 
mitigate or compensate for any adverse impact. This includes in relation 
to drainage and the potential for the pollution of designated sites as a 
result of inadequate surface water provisions.  

 
73. These policies are considered to be consistent with Paragraphs 155 to 

165 of the NPPF which, inter alia, require that development incorporates 
appropriate sustainable drainage systems and does not increase flood 
risk elsewhere and Paragraph 170 which requires that, when 
determining planning applications, local planning authorities minimise 
impacts upon and provide net gains for biodiversity, including wherever 
possible, through helping to improve local environmental conditions such 
as water quality.  

 
74. The site is located within Flood Zone 1, which is defined as having low 

probability of flooding and an area where commercial and residential 
development is considered acceptable in principle. The application is 
supported by a drainage strategy which proposes to discharge foul 
sewage to the existing foul sewer serving the site, with surface water 
drainage also being proposed to be discharged to the public sewerage 
network. The foul drainage provisions are considered to be acceptable 
and no objection has been raised by Southern Water in respect of these. 
Additional information has however been requested with regards to 
various aspects of the approach to surface water management by 
Hampshire County Council, Southern Water and the Council’s Ecologist 
as set out within their respective consultation responses. The applicant 
has subsequently provided further information on this matter and 
updated responses from these consultees are presently awaited.  

 
75. In terms of other ecological considerations, given that the site is 

surrounded by extensive areas of hardstanding there is more limited 
potential for biodiversity to be present within the site. Notwithstanding 
this and due to the combination of the age of the buildings and the 
disuse of the post office in recent years, there could be some potential 
for bats or birds to have been utilising the buildings. A survey has 
therefore been undertaken and provided with the application, with this 
assessing the suitability of the site for these species as well as including 
the results of surveys carried out to see if they are present in the 
buildings. Due to the presence of suitable roosting features and some 
nearby foraging and commuting habitat, the buildings were classed as 
having low bat roost suitability, however, no bats or evidence of bats 
were seen during the surveys and the report concludes that the buildings 
are not being used by roosting bats. As foraging bats were however 
observed in the vicinity of the site, the report recommends that 
enhancements for roosting bats be provided within the development (bat 
bricks).  
 

39



76. Two disused birds nests were found to be present in the former post 
office building and courting/breeding behaviour was also observed 
during the survey by pigeons. The report therefore recommends that the 
buildings should be checked by a suitably qualified ecologist prior to 
demolition works commencing. The same is recommended for the 
existing trees present on the site prior to them being removed. It is also 
recommended that new nesting opportunities are provided within the 
development (bird boxes) as part of the ecological mitigation and 
enhancement measures.  
 

77. The submitted report has been reviewed by the Council’s Ecologist who 
has endorsed the findings and recommendations contained within it. 
Responses have also been provided to the questions that the Ecologist 
raised in her initial consultation response and the plans have been 
amended to remove the uplighters from the indicative lighting scheme, 
with the final lighting design to be subject to a condition at which stage it 
can also be ensured that there is no conflict with the bat and bird boxes 
which, as noted above, are to be incorporated into the fabric of the 
building. In addition, the external store at the northern end of the site will 
have a green roof to provide a further ecological enhancement. The final 
planting scheme for the site and ecological enhancement measures can 
be suitably covered by way of a planning condition.  

 
Nutrient neutrality 
 

78. The water environment within the Solent region is one of the most 
important for wildlife in the United Kingdom. It is internationally 
recognised and is protected under the Water Environment Regulations 
and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as 
amended). Natural England have advised that there are high levels of 
nitrogen and phosphorus input to this water environment with evidence 
that these nutrients are causing eutrophication at these designated sites. 
These nutrient inputs currently mostly come either from agricultural 
sources or from wastewater from existing housing and other 
development. The resulting dense mats of green algae and other effects 
on the marine ecology resulting from an excessive presence of nutrients 
are impacting on the Solent’s protected habitats and bird species. There 
is presently uncertainty as to whether new growth will further deteriorate 
designated sites and whilst this uncertainty remains, Natural England 
have advised that new housing developments across the Solent region 
have the potential to exacerbate these impacts and create a risk to the 
future conservation status of these sites.  

 
79. The Council, as the responsible body for Habitats Regulations 

Assessments under the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
Regulations, must ensure as part of a planning application that a 
development will not have an adverse impact on any European 
protected sites or the features for which they are designated and the 
above-mentioned impacts are therefore required to be mitigated. One 
way in which to address this issue is for new development to achieve 

40



nutrient neutrality which is a means of ensuring that development does 
not add to existing nutrient burdens and provide certainty that the 
scheme is deliverable in line with the requirements of these Regulations.  

 
80. The Council has adopted an interim strategy whereby it will identify 

areas of agricultural land and remove them from a nitrate intensive use, 
which would provide mitigation through offsetting the impacts of a 
development. This will ensure no net increase in nitrates within the 
Solent and thereby allow a development to achieve nutrient neutrality. In 
order to do this, the Council calculates the level of nitrate mitigation this 
land provides (measured in kg) and makes ‘nitrate credits’ available to 
developers to buy, with the securing of the required funding then being 
done through the S106 process. The charge for these credits is £4,500 
per dwelling which includes estimated costs of land purchase and 
ongoing maintenance. The requisite charge for this development is 
therefore £126,000 and the applicant has agreed to utilise this scheme 
as a means of offsetting the impacts of the development. These 
contributions will need to be secured via a legal agreement. A Habitats 
Regulations Assessment will also need to be undertaken by the local 
planning authority to outline whether there will be any significant effects 
on the European protected site, moving to the appropriate assessment 
stage in consultation with Natural England where these cannot be ruled 
out.  

 
Environmentally sustainable development and climate change 
 
81. Saved Policies 34.ES and 37.ES of the adopted local plan require 

development to be sustainable in terms of climate change use and 
resource and energy use, whilst the NPPF within Paragraph 8, as part of 
the environmental objective of sustainable development, states that 
development should use natural resources prudently, minimise waste 
and pollution, and mitigate and adapt to climate change, including 
moving to a low carbon economy. 
 

82. The development incorporates both commercial and residential 
development. The Council’s Environmentally Sustainable Development 
SPD requires that where non-residential development of more than 
500sqm is proposed, BREEAM standards will apply. As the proposed 
floorspace in this case is less than this figure (395sqm), this requirement 
is not applicable in this case. Notwithstanding this, the development 
proposes the use of passive and efficient energy measures to enhance 
its environmentally sustainability credentials and minimise its energy 
demands. These measures include improved U-values, mix mode 
ventilation, solar control glass, energy efficient lighting, high efficiency 
boilers, and high efficiency heat recovery (in MVHR systems). In 
addition, solar photovoltaic panels will be installed on the roofs of the 
buildings to generate viable renewable energy for the development. The 
development will also be required to adhere to the requirement for the 
properties to be designed to achieve a maximum of 105 litres per person 
per day water usage as per the Council’s standards for residential 

41



development.  
 

83. Conditions will be imposed in respect of water usage and energy 
efficiency and with this and the measures outlined above, it is 
considered that the development will be sustainable in terms of climate 
change and resource and energy use.  

 
Planning obligations 
 
84. In accordance with the guidance contained within the NPPF, Saved 

Policies 25.NC, 74.H, 147.OS, 165.TA and 191.IN of the adopted 
Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review (2001-2011), the Council’s 
‘Planning Obligations’ SPD, and the requirements of Regulation 122 of 
the Community Infrastructure Regulations, there is a requirement for 
planning obligations to ensure on and off-site provision for facilities and 
infrastructure made necessary by the development, and to mitigate 
against any increased need/pressure on existing facilities. This is in 
addition to the requisite on-site provision of affordable housing. 
 

85. With regards to affordable housing provision, Saved Policy 74.H requires 
35% on-site provision for a development of the size proposed. This 
would equate to 10no. units for a development of 28no. properties. 
National planning policy however provides an incentive for brownfield 
development on sites containing vacant buildings (the Vacant Building 
Credit). This states that where a vacant building is brought back into any 
lawful use, or is demolished to be replaced by a new building, the 
developer should be offered a financial credit equivalent to the existing 
gross floorspace of relevant vacant buildings when the local planning 
authority calculates any affordable housing contribution which will be 
sought. As the post office building is presently vacant therefore, its 
floorspace can be offset against the new development and this reduces 
the affordable housing requirement to 8no. units in line with national 
planning policy. Notwithstanding this, the application still proposes to 
provide 35% affordable housing, which in this case is therefore an 
overprovision of 2no. units, with all affordable units to be constructed to 
Lifetime Homes standards in line with the Council’s requirements. This 
overprovision represents a benefit of the development proposals.  
 

86. In addition to the affordable housing provision, financial contributions / 
obligations towards the following infrastructure have been identified as 
being required in respect of the development proposed: 

 

 Community infrastructure 

 Off-site public open space provision 

 Wildlife sites and local green space 

 Public art 

 Nutrient neutrality mitigation 
 
87. Contributions may also potentially be necessitated towards education, 

health and air quality monitoring, however these will need to be 

42



confirmed by the relevant consultees in these respects and their 
responses on the application are presently awaited. 
 

88. The projects and measures identified for contribution expenditure would 
comply with the 3 tests set out in Regulation 122 of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy 2010, in that the monies would go towards the 
projects which are directly related to the development, and are fairly and 
reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development. The 
contributions would be index-linked to ensure they rise in line with the 
costs of providing the identified projects/measures. The obligations 
sought are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms and to meet the needs generated by the new residents and the 
potential impact on existing services and facilities. 
 

89. These obligations will need to be secured via a Section 106 Agreement 
and any planning permission will be subject to the applicant entering into 
this accordingly.  

 
Equalities implications 

 
90. Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 created the public sector equality 

duty. Section149 states that: 
 

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 
 
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act; 
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and, 
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 
When making policy decisions, the Council must take account of the 
equality duty and in particular any potential impact on protected groups.  

 
91. It is not considered that this application raises any equality implications. 
 
Other material considerations 
 
92. None. 
 

Conclusion 
 

93. In conclusion, it is considered that the development is acceptable in 
terms of use, layout and design and that it achieves the balance 
advocated within local and national planning policy of making efficient 
use of this sustainably located and partly vacant brownfield site and 
achieving appropriate densities, whilst at the same time respecting the 
character of the area, promoting regeneration and change within 

43



Eastleigh Town Centre, and securing well-designed, attractive places. It 
will also include an overprovision of on-site affordable housing and 
mitigate its impacts upon and contribute to improvements to local 
infrastructure through developer contributions. Subject to the outstanding 
matters being addressed, it is also acceptable in terms of its highway 
impacts and in respect of the matters of trees, as well as ecology and 
residential amenity. Overall therefore and subject to the applicant 
entering into a legal agreement to secure the requisite planning 
obligations and consideration of the outstanding consultation responses, 
the proposals comply with local and national planning policy provisions 
and are considered to constitute sustainable development.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 19 January 2021  

FINANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that   
 
(1) £10,000 is allocated for stream bank re-enforcement at 8 Oaklands, 

Chandler’s Ford from the revenue budget; 
(2) £20,000 is allocated for the Summer 2021 event from the revenue reserve; 
(3) £5,200 is allocated for the Velmore Youth Café 21/22 from the revenue 

reserve; 
(4) £5,000 is allocated for the Mela 2021 from the revenue reserve; 
(5) £2,000 is allocated for Park Sport 2021 from the revenue reserve; 
(6) £1,400 is allocated for the Lantern Parade 2021 from the revenue reserve; 
(7) £1,000 is allocated for Pride 2021 from the revenue reserve; 
(8) £750 is allocated for Friday Night Football 21/22 from the revenue reserve; 
(9) £6,000 is allocated for town centre flowers from the revenue budget; and 
(10) £5,000 is allocated for enhanced autumn leaf clearance from the revenue 

budget. 
 

Summary 
 
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s capital 
budget and revenue budget.  
 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 ie, the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.  

 

Strategic Implications  

2. The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to 
localism (Local First) by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs. 
The recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling 
Deprivation, Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, Supporting an 
Excellent Environment, and Reinvigorating Town and Local Centres.  

47

Agenda Item 9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Stream Bank repairs to the rear of Oaklands, Chandlers’ Ford 

3. A tributary of the Monks Brook runs through the Council-owned land in the 
North End Copse Nature Park. This runs alongside the rear boundaries of the 
back gardens of the houses on Oaklands in Chandlers’ Ford. The stream has 
created a small meander, which is now threatening the boundary behind 
number 8 Oaklands. The Environment Agency has inspected the site and 
requested that the stream bed be cleared to prevent flooding and that the 
bank at this point be re-enforced to prevent encroachment into the private 
properties.  

4. The Transport and Engineering Team have been asked to prepare a detailed 
design and cost estimate. It is anticipated that this will between £5,000 - 
£10,000. It is therefore recommended that up to £10,000 is allocated for these 
works from the contingency revenue budget. 

Town centre event 2021 

5. Councillors have supported large town centre events in recent years. These 
include the Celebration of Steam in 2017, followed by two consecutive 
Eastleigh Remembers events in 2018 and 2019. Local Councillors allocated 
the funds for a further event in 2020, but this was cancelled due to Covid-19. 

6. Councillors would like to run a similar event in the summer of 2021, if 
circumstances allow. While the theme is yet to be confirmed it is hoped that 
we will be able to celebrate the end of Covid restrictions and thank all those 
involved in supporting the wider community through this traumatic time.  

7. £10,000 previously allocated to the Summer 2020 event from the revenue 
reserve was reallocated at the September 2020 meeting of this Committee for 
a summer cultural programme for the town centre. £10,000 is therefore 
available to carry forward to the 2021 event. Councillors would now like to 
allocate a further £10,000 to create a total event budget of £20,000 from the 
revenue reserve. 

Regular events and services  

8. Each year this Committee allocates funding for a range of events and projects 
from the local revenue reserve budget. Councillors have agreed to fund the 
projects set out in the table below from the revenue reserve, again subject to 
restrictions being lifted:  

Regular events and recurring services Allocation 

Velmore Youth Café 21/22, 50% funding matched by 
Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury Parish Council for a one 
day a week youth drop-in session at the Velmore Centre 

£5,200 

Eastleigh Mela 2021 £5,000 

48



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Park Sport 2021 £2,000 

Lantern Parade 2021 £1,400 

Eastleigh Pride 2021 £1,000 

Friday Night Football 2021 £750 

Total £15,350 

 

9. The Velmore Youth Café was only able to run for 50% of 2020/21 providing a 
saving of £2,600. This, combined with the cancellation of the Mela, the 
Lantern Parade, Pride 2020 and Friday Night Football means that a total of 
£10,750 is available to carry forward to fund these events and services in 
2021/22. It is therefore recommended that a further £4,600 is allocated for the 
above events and services from the revenue reserve.  

Town centre flowers 

10. Every town centre in the country has been severely affected by the Covid-19 
pandemic and Eastleigh is no exception. This Committee has funded a range 
of cultural events and attractions, from performers and public art to a new craft 
market in the lead up to Christmas, to help maintain the town’s appeal and 
footfall, while retaining the required social distancing. As part of this offer the 
Council paid £5,700 for 100 hanging baskets throughout the town. Councillors 
would like to continue with this initiative in future years as part of a wider 
package to help the town recover. It is therefore recommended that £6,000 is 
allocate to town centre flowers from the revenue budget. 

Autumn leaf clearance 

11. Each Autumn the Council’s Streetscene team collects the leaves falling in the 
town’s roads and open spaces. The current service provides four regular 
collections across all the affected roads, together with a responsive service 
following reports from local residents.  

12. In recent years there have been a consistent number of complaints that the 
current level of leaf clearance is insufficient. This makes walking along some 
or worst affected footpaths inconvenient and even hazardous, especially when 
combined with freezing conditions. It also leads to localised flooding when 
highway gullies are blocked.  

13. Councillors would like to enhance the current service in order to improve 
customer satisfaction, the quality of our local environment and reduce 
flooding. An additional collection round will cost £5,000 every year. It is 
therefore recommended that £5,000 is allocated for this service from the 
revenue budget.  

49



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Changes to budget allocation 

14. Over the past year there have been three changes to the originally allocated 
budget source. The following table sets these out for clarification.   

Activity Original 
amount 

Original 
funding 
source/ 
Committee 
date 

Revised funding source 

Town Centre 
Event 2020 

£20,000 Revenue 
Budget – 
15/09/20 

 

£10,000 from the Revenue 
Reserve allocation for the 
Summer 2020 Town Centre 
Covid Support programme. 

£10,000 underspend now 
available to allocate to the 
Town Centre Event 2021, as 
recommended in paragraph 7 
above. 

Town Centre 
Festive 
programme 

£6,000 Revenue 
Reserve -
17/11/20 

£6,000 from 2020 Christmas 
Event revenue budget  

Eastleigh 
Market 

£5,000 Revenue 
Reserve - 
17/11/20 

£5,000 from 2020 Christmas 
Event revenue budget 

 

Equality Impact Assessment 

15. An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out for this report, as all 
the events and services are designed to be inclusive, however separate 
further consideration of the inclusivity and accessibility aspect of each event 
and service will be carried out as part of the project delivery.   

16. For example, Councillors have requested that the town centre 
events programme fully engages young people in the design and delivery and 
also that it appeals to all ethnic groups. The activities will be provided free of 
charge, to enable those who are suffering the economic impact of Covid or on 
low incomes to participate.   

17. The Annual Mela and Pride events are strong examples of the Council 
meeting the aim of the Equalities Act 2010 relating to promoting good 
relations between people with different characteristics. 

50



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Climate Change and Environmental Implications  

18. The stream bank improvement in North End Nature Park will transform a very 
local area, where local residents have attempted to prevent erosion using a 
range of rubble and paving slabs combined with brush from nearby trees. The 
works will improve appearance of this area for park users and the reduce the 
likelihood of localised flooding.  

19. The clearance of leaves across the town will also prevent flooding and the 
Streetscene team are investigating how the collected leaves can be 
composted locally to provide a source of mulch for use in parks and open 
space. The aim being to improve soil and plant health and increase water 
retention. The combined effect will increase the resilience of our local parks in 
the face of increasing summer droughts.  

GUY RIDDOCH 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 19 January 2021 
Contact Officer: Guy Riddoch  
Tel No: 02380 683369 
e-mail: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: None 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.  

None 

 

51



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 19 January 2021  

FEES AND CHARGES 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Local Area Committee: 

(1)   approve the fees and charges set out in the Appendices A-D to come into effect 
from 1 April 2021; and 

2)  keep the charges for car parking unchanged for 2021/22, in line with the 
emerging corporate recommendation 

Summary 
 
Fees and Charges for Council services are reviewed on a regular basis. In accordance 
with the budget strategy approved by the Cabinet in October, fees and charges levied by 
the Council are being reviewed with the intention of increases being introduced with effect 
from April 2021 where possible. 
 

Statutory Powers 
 

Section 151 of the, Local Government Act 1972 

 

Strategic Implications  

2. This report relates to the Council’s new ways of working which includes 
“Operating in a business-like, commercially focused way”.  

Introduction 

3. The purpose of this report is to examine the effects of income received by the 
Council with regard to fees and charges levied for services that are the 
responsibility of Eastleigh Local Area Committee. 

4. Local Area Committees have the discretion to set fees for services devolved 
to their areas subject to compliance with the corporate target to generate an 
additional minimum yield from fees and charges of 2%.  This yield increase 
should be introduced from April 2021 where possible.  

  

53

Agenda Item 10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Fees and Charges 

5. The Service Managers responsible for the affected services have 
recommended increasing the Fees and Charges from 1 April 2021 and the 
proposed charges are shown in Appendix A to D. 

6. The November 2020 Cabinet approved the following recommendation: ‘To 
support the local economy and town and local centres during the health 
crisis, businesses will benefit from a real-terms reduction in Environmental 
Health service costs and a reduction of up to 80% in the cost of Table and 
Chairs Licences. To support the recovery of the Borough’s town and local 
centres, parking tariffs in car parks will also be frozen.'  

7. Car parking income has significantly reduced due to COVID-19 restrictions; 
the corporate yield target has not been applied to this area, and Local Area 
Committees are therefore not expected to meet any shortfall. It is therefore 
recommended that parking charges remain unchanged for 2021/22.  

Risk Management 

8. There is always a risk that proposed charges will not yield the overall 
anticipated 2% additional income target for the Budget.  The impact of simply 
increasing the fees and charges needs to be balanced against the impact on 
demand and this will be monitored closely during the quarterly Performance 
and Financial Monitoring processes throughout the year. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

9. Any service equality and diversity implications will have been considered by 
Heads of Service as part of their Service Planning processes. No equality and 
diversity implications have been identified. Rates for statutory, voluntary and 
community organisations to hire facilities are lower than those for commercial 
organisations, reflecting the Council’s encouragement of equal opportunities 
and positive action towards groups with protected characteristics. 

Conclusion 

10. A review of the Local Area Committee fees and charges has been undertaken 
and where possible the review reflects the budget requirement to achieve a 
2% increase in yield. It is recommended that the fees and charges come into 
effect from the 1 April 2021. 

GUY RIDDOCH 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 22 December 2020 
Contact Officer: Guy Riddoch  
Tel No: 02380 683369 
e-mail: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 4 
 

54



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

List Background Papers or state - None.

55



APPENDIX A 
Countryside Service Fees and Charges with effect from 1 April 2021  

 

Lakeside Country Park 
(Charges shown are exclusive of VAT) 

01/04/2020 
£ 

01/04/2021 
£ 

Change 
% 

Lake and changing room hire, per 3-hour session 

Commercial 78.00 80.00 2.56% 

Registered charity/community or education 24.00 25.00 4.17% 

Registration fee 78.00 80.00 2.56% 

Lake hire, per 3-hour session 

Commercial 78.00 80.00 2.56% 

Registered charity/community or education 10.00 10.00 0% 

Registration fee 78.00 80.00 2.56% 

Arena Hire, 9am – 5pm 

Commercial/public sector over 500 people 1,500.00 1,500.00 0% 

Commercial/public sector up to 500 people 680.00 680.00 0% 

Registered charity/education/club By agreement By agreement  

Not-for-profit/commercial By agreement By agreement  

Arena hire, extra time per hour 

Commercial/public sector 43.00 44.00 2.32% 

Registered charity/education/club 21.50 22.00 2.32% 

Conference Room, large (60-seater) whole day 

Commercial/public sector 310.00 320.00 3.23% 

Registered charity/education/club 155.00 160.00 3.23% 

Conference Room, large (60-seater) half day 

Commercial/public sector 155.00 160.00 3.23% 

Registered charity/education/club 75.00 77.00 2.67% 

Conference Room, medium (40-seater) whole day 

Commercial/public sector 215.00 220.00 2.32% 

Registered charity/education/club 108.00 110.00 1.85% 

Conference Room, medium (40-seater) half day 

Commercial/public sector 108.00 110.00 1.85% 

Registered charity/education/club 54.00 55.00 1.85% 

Conference Room, small (20-seater) whole day 

Commercial/public sector 112.00 115.00 2.69% 

Registered charity/education/club 56.00 57.00 1.79% 

Conference Room, small (20-seater) half day 

Commercial/public sector 56.00 59.00 5.36% 

Registered charity/education/club 28.00 29.00 3.57% 

Conference Room, extras 

Tea and coffee and biscuits - per person 1.90 1.95 2.63% 

Tea and coffee - per person 1.35 1.40 3.74% 

Photocopying – per single sided copy B&W 0.12 0.15 25% 

 

 

56



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

APPENDIX B 

Outdoor Sports Facilities with effect from 1 April 2021   

Outdoor Sports Facilities  
(Charges shown are exclusive of VAT) 

01/01/2020 
£ 

01/04/2021 
£ 

Change 
% 

Cricket 

Pitch for Adults with two dressing rooms half day or 
evening matches 

84.00 85.50 1.79% 

Pitch for children (under 18 years) with changing 
facilities 

30.00 30.50 1.67% 

Football 

Pitch for Adults with two dressing rooms 84.00 85.50 1.79% 

Pitch for children (under 18 years) with changing 
facilities 

32.00 32.50 1.56% 

Mini - Soccer pitch - per session 33.00 33.50 1.52% 

Rugby 

Pitch-Adults with two dressing rooms 100.00 102.00 2.00% 

Pitch-children (under 18) with dressing room 50.00 51.00 2.00% 

Mini – Rugby pitch - per session 23.50 24.00 2.13% 

  

57



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

APPENDIX C 

Energy Centre Fees and Charges with effect from 1 April 2021  

Energy Centre 
(Charges shown are exclusive of VAT) 

01/01/2020 
£/hr 

01/04/2021 
£/hr 

Change 
% 

Room Commercial  
Each 1 to 1 Room (Lime room, Blue room. Pink 
room, White room) 

7.80 8.00 2.00% 

Room Vol Org/Stat Agency 
Each 1 to 1Room (Lime room, Blue room. Pink 
room, White room) 

6.30 6.50 2.00% 

Main hall and chill out area – Commercial 39.00 40.00 2.56% 

Main hall and chill out area – Org/Stat Agency 31.40 32.00 1.91% 

Whole facility (minus recording studio, office & 
locked storage) – Commercial 

62.80 64.00 1.91% 

Recording Studio – Commercial 12.80 13.00 1.56% 

Recording Studio – Org/Stat Agency 6.30 6.40 1.59% 

Kitchen an extra per session amount will be 
charged – Commercial 

12.70 13.00 2.36% 

Kitchen an extra per session amount will be 
charged – Org/Stat Agency 

12.70 13.00 2.36% 

Whole Centre all day – Commercial 385.00 395.00 2.60% 

Whole Centre all day – Org/stat Agency 310.00 315.00 1.61% 

Gasson Suite - Commercial 17.30 17.70 2.31% 

Gasson Suite - Other 13.80 14.00 1.45% 

New Customers one month free on bookings over 6 
months 

     

  

58



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

APPENDIX D 

Cemeteries Fees and Charges with effect from 1 April 2021 

Cemetries 
(All charges inclusive of VAT where applicable) 

01/01/2020 
£ 

01/04/2021 
£ 

Change 
% 

Internment: 

Single depth 1,012.00 1,033.00 2.08% 

Double depth 1,287.00 1,315.00 2.18% 

Re-open to single depth 1,091.00 1,115.00 2.20% 

Cremated remains 348.00 356 2.30% 

For right to scatter ashes 94.00 96 2.13% 

Additional charge for providing a 24-hour burial 
service 

580.00 593 2.24% 

Exhumation POA POA  

Additional Charge for Weekend Working or late 
funerals incurring overtime. 

219.00 224 2.28% 

Plot in Columbarium (includes purchase and rights 
for inscribed plaque and first interment) 

878.00 898 2.28% 

Exclusive burial rights (30 years) - plot selected by Council (purchased at time of burial): 

Plot for Adult 880.00 898 2.05% 

Plot for Cremated remains 368.00 376 2.17% 

Plot selected by purchaser (purchased in advance, only available at Eastleigh Cemetery): 

Plot for Cremated remains    

Transferral of burial deeds    

Memorials: 

Inscribing vase under 10” 98.00 100 2.04% 

Any memorial (includes memorial licence for 10 
years) 

382.00 390 2.09% 

Charges for additional inscription 88.00 90 2.27% 

Memorial shrubs or roses for 7 years 176.00 180 2.27% 

Memorial benches for additional 7 years 94.00 96 2.13% 

N.B Double charges will be made for all the above fees to non-residents (after two years outside of 
the Borough).  An exception is made where a resident moves outside the Borough for specialist 
nursing home or hospital care. 

 

 

 

 

59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 19 January 2021  

COMMUNITY GRANTS 

Report of the Assistant Local Area Manager on behalf of the 
Eastleigh Community Grants Panel 

 

Recommendation 

(1) It is recommended that the following grants be approved, subject to the 
conditions as referred to in Appendix 1: 

 

Eastleigh Youth and Community Trust £1,500 

Youth Options £1,000 

Sensecere CIC £993 

MHA Communities Eastleigh £1,000 

SeeAbility £1,620 

ARK Eastleigh £250 

Eastleigh Borough and Romsey Mencap £750 

Eastleigh and District NCT £2,500 
 

Summary 
 
The Grants Panel recommends that grants be allocated to local organisations operating in 
the Eastleigh, Allbrook and Velmore area for 2020/21. 

Statutory Powers 
 
S. 1 Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, including 
power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area. 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The recommendations in this report support the Council’s approach to 
localism (Local First) by allocating devolved resources to meet local needs. 
The recommendations align with Corporate Plan objectives of Tackling 

61

Agenda Item 11



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Deprivation, Enabling Healthier Lifestyles and Wellbeing, Supporting an 
Excellent Environment, Improving Town and Local Centres, Increasing 
Provision and Ensuring a more diverse mix of Housing, and Enabling the 
Right Skills and Employment mix. 

Introduction 

2. This Committee has allocated £13,000 (£3,000 of which was carried over 
from the underspend from last financial year) for a community grant budget to 
fund grants to local organisations. This year we particularly welcomed 
applications that; support young people’s mental health, reduce social 
isolation, promote neighbourhood connections, green our streets and visual or 
performance art applications, whilst also recognising the huge impact that 
Covid-19 is having on our communities. 8 different grant applications were 
received with a total value of £10,113. 

3. The grant panel comprises Councillors Campbell, Tyson-Payne and Bourne 
and it convened to review the applications on 6th January this year. 

The Panel’s decisions 

4. The Grants Panel sought to ensure the available funding was spread 
throughout the three local wards. 

5. The Panel also considered the objectives of the organisations, the numbers 
attending; whether they were from the Local Area; the total cost of the project 
and whether funding was or could be sought from elsewhere. The applications 
were also assessed against the following criteria: including business plans, 
details on how the grant application meets Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
priorities (Green Borough, Healthy Communities and Prosperous Place) and 
confirmation that the applications were not for day to day running costs. 

6. It is recommended that grants be approved as contained in Appendix 1 to this 
report. 

Financial Implications 

7. The total grant awarded in this report amounts to £9,613 and can be 
contained within the approved budget £13,000. 

Risk Assessment 

8. The recommendations made by the Grants Panel do not hold significant risks. 
All grant applications are subject to the completion of a detailed application 
and supporting documents including submission of financial details. A follow 
up check will be made to ensure the funds have been spent in line with the 
approved grant within 12 months of the award. 

62



 

 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

9. The report complies with our policy to ensure that the voluntary and 
community sectors are treated fairly and equitably. The Council has had due 
regard to the aims of the Equality Act. The recommendations in this report 
promote equality of opportunity, in particular for children and young people, 
children and young people with disabilities and disabled people (including 
mental health). As part of the application process, applicants are required to 
submit an Equal Opportunities statement. 

 

10. Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

The community grants encourage and aim to change residents’ behaviour by 
supporting projects which incorporate green initiatives, for example, the 
Access Nature Days proposed by Youth Options. These are designed to 
connect young people with nature and teach them about the importance of the 
environment and preserving their local community. 
 

Conclusion 

11. The recommendations made in this report complement the Council’s 
corporate priorities as well as this Committee’s local priorities. Due to the 
current Covid pandemic and coinciding with the festive break some applicants 
have been unable to supply some of the required documentation. The Panel 
felt that as long as these can be provided in the near future the projects 
should be funded. Conditions have therefore been recommended as set out in 
the Appendix 1. The grants will be awarded in February 21 to recognise and 
celebrate the breadth of community work being undertaken in the local area. 

SIOBHAN STRAND 
ASSISTANT LOCAL AREA MANAGER 

 
Date: 07 January 2021 
Contact Officer: Siobhan Strand  
Tel No: 02380 688428 
e-mail: siobhan.strand@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

8 grant applications were received and are held on file for further inspection. 
Information is available from Siobhan Strand, Assistant Local Area Manager. 
 

63



This page is intentionally left blank



Organisation Project description Amount applied for Amount recommended Grant conditions
Eastleigh Youth & Community Trust We were hosting five group sensory sessions per week, catering for 60+ unique 

participants per week. Participants contributed £4 per session. Due to current guidelines, 
and in recognition of the social distancing rules for indoor activity, we will now have to 
host 12 exclusive sessions per week for families or groups in a bubble, catering for up to six 
participants per session. This would mean that we would have to ask them for £40 per 
session (up to 6 participants) to cover costs, which we know is not possible due to their 
low income. We are requesting funds to cover the difference, which will go towards 
staffing, additional cleaning equipment and PPE.

£1,500 £1,500 This is the second year running 
we have funded Eastleigh 
Youth and Community Trust.

Youth Options  This grant will fund 4 ‘Access Nature’ activity days which will encourage young people and 
their families to access and engage with nature throughout the seasons. This includes:1 x 
Youth Support Worker: £483
1 X Delivery Manager: £65, Venue Hire: £200, Resources: £152, Management and 
Overheads: £100, Sessions would be held at our outdoor learning site at Itchen Valley 
Country Park and our own Outdoor Learning Centre in Eastleigh, as well as exploring other 
local walks and parks to show the variety of local outdoor opportunities. 

£1,000 £1,000 Subject to supporting 
information requested.

65



Sensecere CIC £200.00 - motivational interaction toys (cause and effect). Cost including device and 
switch.
£255.00 - inPrint software which creates picture exchange communication system 
resources (PECS). Cost including resources to develop symbols from inPrint i.e. laminating 
sheets, velcro.
£538.00 - specialist training in interaction and play for children with autism and/or 
alternative communication needs.

£993 £993 Subject to supporting 
information requested.

MHA Communities Eastleigh I am asking for funding to cover the costs of producing 100 of three sets of our upcoming 
Quarterly newsletter / activity packs.
£288 Towards the cost of producing 1OO copies of Spring , Summer and Autumn quarterly 
Newsletters for 2021 ( The average cost per quarter for printing newsletters and activity 
books is £120 i have reduced this amount by 20% to simulate the percentage of members 
who live in the central Eastleigh , Allbrook and Velmore parts of the borough ) .

£690 towards the cost of producing 100 of our Spring , Summer and Autumn activity packs 
( the packs on average cost £2.30 each to create and put together.

£22 towards Volunteer costs 

£1,000 £1,000 This is the second year running 
we have funded MHA 
Communities Eastleigh.

SeeAbility The grant funding will be spent to purchase 9 Samsung Galaxy Tablet A (Wifi enabled) at a 
cost of £180 each.

The tablets will enable more residents to connect to digital therapeutic support that 
ranges from speech and language therapy, personal behaviour support, attending 
meetings for associates and weekly drop-in sessions. The device will also help residents 
connect to loved ones and volunteers who have been supporting through phone calls to 
keep in touch and reading (via calls). 

Our recent Christmas Concert which took place virtually had a performance from 
SeeAbility's makaton group, where people we support sign and sing along to different 
songs. This has been possible due to technology and we're determined to connect more 
residents to these online sessions. 

As we look ahead, we will be using these devices strategically so they act as a digital 
passport of each resident - forming part of our wider digital structure at SeeAbility. The 
tablets will guide support team to learn more about the residents, their interests, their 
personalities as well as monitoring their health and fitness.

£1,620 £1,620 This is the second year running 
we have funded SeeAbility.

66



ARK Eastleigh £150  - phone costs 
£100  - contribution towards Team leaders' time to organise volunteer telephone call rotas 
and socially distanced events

£250 £250, but not for running costs. We are 
open to support a specific project or 
equipment/event.

Supporting information on an 
actual project/equipment has 
been requested. This is the 
second year running we have 
funded ARK Eastleigh.

Eastleigh Borough & Romsey 
Mencap

The majority of our annual income is linked to any funds raised from service delivery and 
community fundraising events. Coronavirus has had a significant impact on our ability to 
fundraise, whilst we continue to try and deliver services in a safe way.
The Chill Out Club continues to meet via video calling software and we try to replicate the 
experience of being together as much as possible. We know that this is not the same for a 
lot of people, and they are really missing the face to face interaction.
Due to the latest restrictions, we are unable to bring this group back together in the same 
way, so we are looking at alternative options that would enable us to meet together in a 
safe place, whilst continuing to provide video calls for the people that are isolating, or 
unable to attend.
If we were successful, we would spend the funds as follows:
£500 staff costs for 3 months
£30 video conferencing costs
£220 (estimated venue hire costs for temporary relocation of Chill Out Club)
£500 for activity packs to be sent to group members at home, to include stimulating, 
educational fun activities & stationery.

£1,250 £750 Subject to supporting 
information requested.

Eastleigh & District NCT £2,000 Breastfeeding counsellor fees
£500 Venue hire

£2,500 £2,500 Subject to supporting 
information requested. This is 
the second year running we 
have funded Eastleigh and 
District NCT.

£10,113 £9,613

67



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Planning Application - Former Eastleigh Post Office, 14 High Street, Eastleigh, SO50 5LA
	9 Financial Management Report
	10 Fees and Charges
	11 Community Grants
	Community Grants Appendix1


